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VISION &

¢ Growth through the best value creation for the benefit of all stakeholders.

MISSION ®

(@ Investin project that will optimize the risk-return profile of the Company.

(@ Achieve excellence in business.
(@ Continuously develop our human resource.

(@ To be regarded by investors as amongst the best blue-chip stocks in the country.
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Group Structure

Introduction

Since its inception, the Ghani Global Group has continuously strengthened and diversified its lines of operation and
all group companies are working under common directorship / management.

¥ T

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited

On sanction of the scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and
Reconstruction by the Court, Ghani Global Holdings Limited
transferred its entire manufacturing undertaking to the Company

effective from 01 July 2018. It is one of the leading Company Ghani Global
engaged in manufacturing and sales of industrial and medical gases HOldlngS Limited
and chemicals. The Company is subsidiary of Ghani Global Holdings

Limited.

Ghani Global Glass Limited <€

Company is engaged in manufacturing of import substitute Neutral
Glass USP Type-l glass tubing, glass ampoules and glass vials since
2015. The Company is the subsidiary of Ghani Global Holdings
Limited.

Air Ghani (Pvt) Limited <

Ghani Engineering (Pvt) Limited <

Ghani Global Foods (Pvt) Limited <
Associated

Ghani Products (Pvt) Limited . Companies

A One Prefabs (Pvt) Limited

<
A One Batteries (Pvt) Limited £
<

Awal Engineering (Pvt) Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

Review Report by the Chairman on Board's overall performance under Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2017.

| am pleased to report that the Board has exercised its powers and performed its duties as envisaged in the
Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 ("the Code")
contained in the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited where the Company is Listed.

The Board during the year ended 30 June 2020 played effective role in managing the affairs of the Company in the
following manner:

- The Board remain updated with respect to achievement of Company's objectives, goals, strategies and
financial performance through review of reports from management, internal auditors and other consultants as a
resultthe Board was able to provide effective leadership to the Company;

- The Board has ensured that there is adequate representation of non-executive and independent directors on the
Board and its committees as laid down in the Code of Corporate Governance and has taken required initiatives
in its true letter and spirit. Moreover, the Board ensured that members of the Board and its respective
committees has adequate skills, experience and knowledge to manage the affairs of the Company;

- The Board has obtained annual evaluation of Board of Directors from a professional firm of accountants for an
independent evaluation of the Board and firm has issued fair report on overall performance of the board;

- The Board has ensured that the directors are provided with the requisite training or orientation courses to enable
them to perform their duties in an effective manner and directors on the Board have already taken certification
under Directors Training Program and the remaining directors will take the certification in accordance with the
Code;

- The Board has formed Audit Committees and Human Resource & Remuneration Committee and has approved
their respective Terms of References and has assigned adequate resources so that the committees are able to
perform their responsibilities diligently in line with the expectation of Board.

- The Board has ensured that the meetings of the Board and that of its committee were held with the requisite
quorum, all the decision making were taken through Board resolution and that the minutes of all the meetings
(including committees) are appropriately recorded and maintained;

- All the significant issues were presented before the Board or its committees to strengthen and formalize the
corporate decision making process and particularly all the related party transactions executed by the Company
were approved by the Board on the recommendations of the Audit Committee;

- The Board has reviewed the compensation of Chief Executive, Executive Directors and other Key Executives
including Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, and Head of Internal Audit in accordance with the
Companies Act, 2017 and the Code;

- The Board has ensured that sound system of internal controls are in place and appropriateness and
effectiveness of same is considered by internal auditors on regular basis;

Based on aforementioned it can reasonably be argued that Board of Ghani Global Holdings Limited has played pivotal
role in ensuring that corporate objectives are achieved in line with the expectation of shareholders and all other

stakeholders. V}/
Lahore Ma%mad Khan

October 02, 2020 Chairman, Board of Directors
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Shareholders

Assalam-o-Alaikum Wa RehmatUllah Wa Barakatoh

The directors of Ghani Global Holdings Limited (formerly Ghani Gases Limited/ the Company) are pleased to present
the unconsolidated audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020, in compliance
with the requirements of Companies Act, 2017.

OVERVIEW OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY

According to the Economic Survey of Pakistan the country's economy has been subjected to demand and supply
shock and the fiscal year 2020 witnessed a contraction in economic activity. Covid-19 pandemic, high inflation and
weakening Rupee posed significant challenges to the economy, resulting in decline of 0.38% in GDP (2019: growth
of 1.9%) for the year ended 30 June 2020. Large scale manufacturing contracted by 7.8% (2019: 2.6%) while the
construction activity in the country also remained subdued due to slowdown in economy.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

As per Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction (the Scheme) sanctioned by the Honourable
Lahore High Court, Lahore on 06-02-2019, the Parent Company (Ghani Global Holdings Limited) transferred its
manufacturing undertaking to Ghani Chemical Industries Limited on July 08, 2019 after effective date. After transfer
of manufacturing undertaking , certain bills, invoices and contracts relating to the company's business activities till
February 29, 2020; the Company routed transactions in its books of accounts on account of utilities, supplies,
imports, local stores and spares to subsidiary company, i.e. Ghani Chemical Industries Limited. These transactions
have been recorded to absorb the impact of Sales Tax Input available in sales tax records of the Company, that could
have been lost in absence any legitimate sales tax output available to the Company. Administrative expenses and
Other operating expenses incurred by the Company are normal operating expenses of the Company. Other income
are commission on corporate guarantee issued by the Company.

STANDALONE PERFORMANCE

A comparison of the key financial results of your Company for the year ended June 30, 2020 with the last year is as
under:

Particulars Rupees in ‘000’ except EPS
June 2020 June 2019

Sales 11,500 -
Net sales 10,050 :
Gross profit - -
Administrative & operating expenses 2,145 2,361
Other income 2,790 2,600
Profit before taxation 645 239
Earnings per share 0.004 0.001

QUALIFIED AUDIT OPINION

The external auditors of the Company in their report to the members of Ghani Global Holdings Limited has provided a
qualified audit opinion that “As fully explained in note 1.1 and note 1.2 to these unconsolidated financial statements,
subsequent to completion of the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction and transfer of
manufacturing undertaking to the subsidiary company i.e. Ghani Chemical Industries Limited on July 08, 2019, the
legal and procedural formalities including registration/ updation of the name of the subsidiary company with the
relevant departments/ utility companies could not be completed till February 29, 2020. Due to certain inherent
impediments of such routing; the impact of non-compliance, if any, cannot be ascertained at this point of time”.

Ghani Global Holdings Limited 06




Regarding above qualified audit opinion, it is stated that the Company has already disclosed above facts in
Company's half yearly report for the period ended December 31, 2019 and the third quarter report for the period
ended March 31, 2020. As per Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction (the Scheme) as
sanctioned by the Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore on 06-02-2019, the Parent Company (Ghani Global
Holdings Limited formerly Ghani Gases Limited) transferred its manufacturing undertaking to Ghani Chemical
Industries Limited (GCIL) on July 08, 2019. Between the effective date and up until 29 February 2020 despite all
possible efforts, many supplier, utilities and other bills continued to be received in Ghani Gases Limited's (GGL)
name, even though GCIL has become the owner and operator of the Manufacturing Undertaking, and it took as long
as the aforementioned period of almost one year after the Order Date for the replacement of GGL's name with GCIL's
name to come through completely due to several bureaucratic process involved. The directors are of the firm view
thatin such circumstances, Ghani Global Holdings Limited and/or the GGL has no option but to transfer all associated
expenses to GCIL until all these bureaucratic processes were complete and further that there is no legal defect
because these steps have been taken by the Company and the subsidiary in pursuance of the Court Order or sanction
of the Court as the lengthy bureaucratic processes involved could not possibly cause GGL's name to be replaced by
GCIL's name in all relevant records immediately after the Sanction Date.

CONSOLIDATED PERFORMANCE
Financial performance including subsidiaries for year ended June 30, 2020 in comparison with last year is as under:

Particulars Rupees in ‘000’ except EPS
June 2020 June 2019
Net sales 3,312,417 3,074,726
Gross profit 780,987 640,727
Selling and distribution expenses 288,015 291,369
Administrative expenses 192,634 207,481
Other income 26,782 21,362
Finance costs 456,647 313,734
(Loss) / profit after taxation (119,752) (212,100)
Attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Company (138,969) (138,052)
Non-Controlling Interests 19,217 (74,048)
Earnings per share (0.906) (0.901)

GHANI CHEMICAL INDUSTRIAL LIMITED

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (GCIL) is engaged in manufacturing and sale of industrial and medical gases and
chemicals. Operational and sales performance of this subsidiary witnessed down because of severe effect of
COVID-19 pandemic when almost all industrial activities remain suspended. On the other hand effects of substantial
increase in electricity and gas prices, decline in Pak rupees against US dollar and steady hike in the policy rate to
13.25% could not passed to the customers.

However after the end of 1* phase of COVID-19 pandemic industrial activities have been again activated and the
subsidiary company has succeeded to pass on negative effects of cost of sales to some extent to its customers. In
the result, subsidiary company has converted into profitability from June 2020 onwards. Further as a major
breakthrough, the subsidiary company has succeeded to enter into long term sales contract for a period of 5 years
with a known refinery in West and negotiations are under process to finalize a long term sales contract of 15 years
with a chemical company. To meet the expected increase in demand of industrial and medical gases the subsidiary is
planning for huge capital expenditure. Reduction in SBP rate to 7% would also help to reduce cost of doing business
andincrease in sale prices and securing the sale by entering into long term contracts, itis expected the subsidiary will

improve its bottom line in the periods to come.
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GHANI GLOBAL GLASS LIMITED

Ghani Global Glass Limited is engaged in manufacturing and sale of import substitute Glass Tubing, Glass Ampoules
and Glass Vials since 2015. During the year subsidiary succeeded to get approval of its products in multinational
companies (MNCs), middle, and large scale national companies where its is working closely with these companies
and getting a sizeable business even the presence of numerous converters in market. During the year this subsidiary
added 20 more customers of ampoules and vails and its customer base for ampoules and vials increased to around
80 Pharma companies.

Alhamdulillah during the under review sale performance of this subsidiary remained excellent and Tube sale
increased by 160%, Ampoules by 167% and Vials by 174% thus aggregate sales increased by 164%. The subsidiary
succeeded to Exports of tube to the tune of 357 tons to Bangladesh, Egypt, Argentina and Mexico. Samples in Italy,
Uruguay and Paraguay are under approval stage and further export destinations are being explored for tubing in
Africa, South America and Middle East region.

The subsidiary company is considering balancing, modernization and replacement to enhance its capacity and to
set-up another melting furnace for glass tubes. Market for glass tubes and other value added products such as
ampoules and vials is robust. Capacity enhancement decision will tap the unmet (and increasing) market demand
and to diversify into new products and markets (including Bangladesh, MENA Countries etc.). After finalization of
internal workings and formal approvals from the bank(s), itis expected the Company will formally announce to set up
another glass melting furnace for tubes shortly. During last two quarters i.e. January -March 2020 and April — June
2020, Alhamdulillah Company has converted into profitability to some extent. Reduction in SBP rate would also help
toreduce cost of doing business and itis expected profits of this company will furtherimprove in the periods to come,
Insha Allah.

PAYOUT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

As a policy matter management of your Company strongly believes in passing on the return of investment to their
shareholders. However keeping in negligible profit earned during the year, the board of directors has skipped the
announcement of any dividend or bonus etc.

STATUS OF INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED/ SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Nature of investments by the Company in associated/ subsidiary company and its present status is as under:

Amount Be?ﬁgt 22:'“
Company Name | Nature of Investment (Ru_pP:es in (Rsv in Present Status
Million) -\ illions)
Ghani Chemical Equity Investment 2,056.991 - Long term Investment
Industries Limited B
Ghani Global Equity Investment 722.316 - Long term Investment
Glass Limited Corporate Guarantees| 775,000 2,790 -Rs.650 million valid up il
October 27, 2021
-Rs. 125 million valid up till
October 27, 2020

STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY

The present auditors' M/s. Rizwan & Company, Chartered Accountants will retire on conclusion of Annual General
Meeting being held on October 28, 2020. As suggested by the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has
recommended their re-appointment as auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2021.
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SHARE PRICE TREND

Name of Company . Ghani Global Holdings Limited
Trading Symbol . GGL

Share price trend of the Company at Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) during the year ended June 30, 2020
remain as under:

: Share Price (in Rs.) Daily Average of
L Trading Volume
High Low Close

1*' Quarter (Jul-Sep. 2019) 9.20 6.70 7.22 91,333
2* Quarter (Oct-Dec 2019) 16.35 7.22 15.01 1,280,031
3 Quarter (Jan-Mar. 2020) 19.00 7.60 8.63 1,033,421
4" Quarter (Apr-Jun. 2020) 16.68 8.50 15.73 1,341,217
Annual for the year 19.00 6.70 15.73 944,599

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In compliance with the requirements of Section 228 of the Companies Act 2017, consolidated financial statements of
the Company along with auditors and directors report thereon have been attached with the financial statements of the
Company.

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFIT

At present no remuneration to any executive director, Chief Executive and/or any person performing duties for the
Company is paid. Accordingly any scheme for staff retirement benefits is not being maintained by the Company.
COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Code of Corporate Governance the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019) has
been implemented. The representation of independent directors has been linked with the restructuring of the board
not later than next election of Directors.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

A Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 is annexed.
CHANGE OF NAME

Effective from 28-08 2019, name of the Company has been changed from Ghani Gases Limited to Ghani Global
Holdings Limited.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The board of Ghani Global Holdings Limited has adopted code of conduct for its Board of Directors and the
employees. All concerns are informed of these codes and are required to observe the rules of conduct in relation to
customers, suppliers and regulations.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

The Company is acting as holding company of its subsidiaries (Ghani Chemical Industries Limited and Ghani Global
Glass Limited) and has contributed Rs. NIL (2019: Rs. NIL million) in shape of taxes, duties and levies paid to central,
provincial government and local authorities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises four members, of whom one is independent and three are
non-executive directors.
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Names of Members of Audit Committee are as under:

Name of Director Catagory Designation in Commitee
Tahir Bashir Khan Independent director Chairman

Masroor Ahmad Khan Non-executive director | Member

Rabia Atique Non-executive director | Member

Saira Farooq Non-executive director | Member

The Audit Committee has its terms of reference which were determined by the Board of Directors in accordance with
the guidelines provided in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

HR&R COMMITTEE
The Board has formed a Human Resource and Remuneration (HR&R) Committee. It comprises four members, of
whom one is independent, two are non-executive and one is executive director.

Names of Members of HR & R Committee are as under:

Name of Director Catagory Designation in Commitee
Mahmood Ahmad Independent director Chairman

Atique Ahmad Khan Executive director Member

Ayesha Masroor Non-executive director | Member

Saira Farooq Non-executive director | Member

RELATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company is committed to establishing mutually beneficial relations with all stakeholders, stock exchange, SECP
and other business partners of the Company. Alhamdulillah during the period under review relations with all
stakeholders remained cordial.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company is committed to both sustainable business practices and its responsibilities as a corporate citizen. We
believe that the Corporate Social Responsibility is primarily about conducting business in a transparent and ethical
way that not only enhances value of all of our stakeholders but also gives supportto the events that enhance the well-
being of the community.

The Corporate Social Responsibility and guidelines for corporate governance are steps in the right direction.

The Company also supports a clean environment and motivates its subsidiary companies for this cause. The
Company also tries its level best that the business activities must be environment-friendly and not be hazardous to
the society.

The Company endeavors to be a trusted corporate entity and fulfills the responsibility towards the environment and
society ingeneral.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors, which consist of Nine members, have responsibility to independently and transparently
monitor the performance of the Company and take strategic decision to achieve sustainable growth in the Company
value.

Total Number of directors:

Description Number of Directors
Male 06
Female 03
Total 09
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Composition of directors:

Categories Number of Directors
Independent directors 02
Other non-executive directors 04
Executive directors 03
Total 09

The Chairman board of directors is among the non-executive directors.

A written notice of the board meeting along with working papers was sent to the members seven days before the
meeting.

A total of five meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year ended June 30, 2020. Leave of absence
was granted to the directors who could not attend some of the board meetings.

The present board of directors were elected in Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October 28, 2017 for
aperiod of three years and shall retire on October 30, 2020.

The board of directors has fixed number of directors to seven for next term of three years. Agenda item for election of
directorsisincluded in notice of annual general meeting to be held on October 28, 2020.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the directors is determined by the Board as per provisions of section 170 of the Companies Act,
2017 on the basis of standards in the market and reflects demand to competencies and efforts in the light of the
scope of their work and responsibilities of the directors.

Remuneration of Executive directors including CEO are reviewed annually by the board of directors.

During the year ended June 30, 2020, no remuneration and/fee is paid to chief executive officer, executive directors,
non-executive directors and independent directors for performing their duties and attending the meetings of board of
directors and/or committees of the board.

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

The chairman's review deals with the overall performance of the board and effectiveness of the role played by the
board in achieving the company's objectives for the year ended June 30, 2020 in compliance with section 192 (4) of
the Companies Act, 2017 is annexed.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
A pattern of shareholding as required under section 227(2) (f) of the Companies Act, 2017 is annexed.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred between the end
of financial year of the Company and date of this report, except enhancement in authorized share capital of the
Company from Rs. 2.000 billion to Rs. 3.000 billion and decision for further aggregate equity investment in Ghani
Global Glass Limited (an subsidiary company) to Rs.950 million and issuance of Cross Corporate Guarantee up to
Rs.750 million to the bank(s) for financing facility to its subsidiary company named Ghani Chemical Industries
Limited.

The subsidiary named Ghani Chemical Industries Limited has signed and agreement with Karim Silk Mills Limited for
merger of both the companies and in the result GCIL will obtain the status of listing subject to completion of all legal
and corporate formalities and sanction by the Honorable Sindh High Court.
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COVID-19 PANDEMIC

During COVID-19 pandemic, the Company and its subsidiaries taken timely and proactive measures by observing
Government SOP's for industries. We enforced sanitization facility at entry point, provided hand washing facility,
mandatory use of face mask, daily body temperature screening of all employees, education to employees about the
risk of corona virus, proper hygiene measures and provided forced leave or alternate days attendance to staff
(wherever necessary). Inand out of vehicles were allowed after proper sanitization. The Company and its subsidiaries
have been well aware of the COVID-19 challenges and left no stone unturned to overcome the unprecedented and
circumstances atits plant and offices.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The directors express their deep appreciation to our valued stakeholders who placed their confidence in the
Company. We would like to express sincere appreciation to the dedication of Company's employees to their
professional obligations and cooperation by the bankers, government agencies, which have enabled the Company
and its subsidiaries to display good performance both in operational and financial fields.

We thank our shareholders who reposed their confidence on management of the Company, the officials of the SECP,
the Pakistan Stock Exchange and all government functionaries as well as the commandments of Allah Subhanatallah
and Sunnah of our Prophet Muhammad (peace be upon him).

On behalf of the Board
Lahore ATIQUE AHMAD KHAN HAFIZ FAROOQ AHMAD
October 02, 2020 (CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (DIRECTOR)
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: GHANI GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Year Inded: JUNE 30, 2020

I'he Company has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 in the following manner:

1= The total number of directors are nine (9) as per the following:

a. Male: (3]
b. Female: 3

2- The composition of board is as follows:

i.  Independent Directors Mr. Tahir Bashir Khan
Mr. Mahmood Ahmad

i.  Non-executive Directors Mr. Masroor Ahmad Khan
Mrs. Ayesha Masroor
Mrs. Rabia Atique
Mrs. Saira Farooq

iii.  Executive Directors Mr. Atiqgue Ahmad Khan
Hafiz Farooq Ahmad
Mr. Farzand Ali

iv. Female Direclors Mrs. Ayesha Masroor
Mrs. Rabia Alique
Mrs. Saira Faroogq

Latest elections of the Board were held in October 2017 before these Regulations came into force,
I'he Company shall comply with the requirement of independent directors on its Board upon
expiry of the term in October 2020 as per clause 6 of the Regulations,

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this company;

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures;

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant
policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

R\
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by board/sharcholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations;

The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the
board;

‘The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuncration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

The company has already met the criteria specified in the Regulations pertaining to Director’s
training program. Therefore, no such training program was conducted during the year;

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head
of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the board;

The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a. Audit Committee

Mr. Tahir Bashir Khan Chairman
Mr. Masroor Ahmad Khan

Mrs. Rabia Atique

Mrs. Saira Faroog

b. HR and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Mahmood Ahmad Chairman
Mr., Atique Ahmad Khan

Mrs. Ayesha Masroor

Mrs. Saira Faroog

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance;

The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following;

a.  Audit Committee Quarterly
b. HR and Remuneration Committee Annually
The board has set up an effective internal audit function which is supervised by the Head of

Internal Audit who is considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are
conversant with the policies and procedures of the company;

[
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16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating, under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of
cthics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and
non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer , Head of Internal
Audit, company Secretary or Director of the company;

17, The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
ather services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with.

19, In addition to the mandatory and non-mandatory clauses/regulations stipulated in the
Regulations, there are certain regulations/clauses in the Regulations in which word ‘may” or
‘encouraged’ have been used. We understand that these clauses remain recommendatory in
nature and therefore, neither fall under mandatory regulations/clauses nor fall into ‘comply or
explain®  approach. However, the Company may voluntarily comply with such
regulations/clauses. As at June 30, 2020, the Company has complied with certain
recommendatory regulations/clauses and the Company may consider compliance with
remainder of these in future; and

20. All the provisions / regulations of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 have also been complied

S\

-

AD KHAN)
ecutive Officer B}

(MASROOR AHMALD KIHAN)
Chairman

Lahore: ﬂ 2 UET E[Im

Ghani Global Holdings Limited 22




1744, Tpu Biock

{ } - Mew Gardieery Towmy, Lahadn, PakiabEn
Rizwan & Company ri( () 92 42 35 84 06 446
R 52 reolwEcyter, rel ph
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Ao Todapeeciend B tar Firm rizwarvEath-pl.com

o TFE Intnrrabcn
B v okl oOM

Independent Auditor's Review Report
To the Members of Ghani Global Holdings Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Ghani Global
Holdings Limited for the year ended June 30, 2020 in accordance with the requirements of regulation
36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act,
2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval
of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.
We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification
of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price
or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30,
2020.

w & LD-
an & Company
red Accountants

nt Partner; Imran Bashir

Lahore: u 2 DGT 2020 Engag
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PATTERN OF THE SHARE HOLDING
As on 30-06-2020 FORM - 34

NUMBER 0F SHARES NO OF NUMBER OF .
SHAREHOLDERS |  SHARES HELD %ON ISSUED

1 100 444 12,032 0.01

101 500 345 120,979 0.08
501 1000 617 447,408 0.29
1001 5000 1,277 3,085,071 2.01
5001 10000 420 3,058,403 1.99
10001 15000 200 2,425,802 1.58
15001 20000 111 1,975,890 1.29
20001 25000 67 1,541,843 1.01
25001 30000 62 1,716,778 1.12
30001 35000 42 1,385,493 0.90
35001 40000 27 1,022,364 0.67
40001 45000 23 992,054 0.65
45001 50000 37 1,812,697 1.18
50001 55000 22 1,157,094 0.75
55001 60000 11 624,503 0.41
60001 65000 9 576,941 0.38
65001 70000 5 340,689 0.22
70001 75000 5 365,972 0.24
75001 80000 8 622,678 0.41
80001 85000 6 496,150 0.32
85001 90000 3 262,941 0.17
90001 95000 1 92,098 0.06
95001 100000 10 992,766 0.65
100001 105000 10 1,031,591 0.67
105001 110000 1 105,435 0.07
110001 115000 5 559,028 0.36
115001 120000 3 350,549 0.23
120001 125000 9 1,114,844 0.73
125001 130000 2 256,188 0.17
130001 135000 2 265,472 0.17
140001 145000 1 140,950 0.09
145001 150000 3 447,500 0.29
150001 155000 3 458,165 0.30
155001 160000 2 317,550 0.21
160001 165000 2 326,166 0.21
165001 170000 2 336,284 0.22
185001 190000 1 185,500 0.12
190001 195000 1 190,068 0.12
195001 200000 1 200,000 0.13
205001 210000 2 416,670 0.27
215001 220000 2 431,459 0.28
220001 225000 2 443,940 0.29
225001 230000 2 456,000 0.30
230001 235000 2 468,756 0.31
235001 240000 1 240,000 0.16
240001 245000 1 244,000 0.16
245001 250000 1 250,000 0.16
250001 255000 1 250,268 0.16
255001 260000 1 257,026 0.17
265001 270000 2 533,500 0.35
275001 280000 1 277,462 0.18
285001 290000 1 290,000 0.19
295001 300000 1 300,000 0.20
305001 310000 1 305,492 0.20
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310001 315000 2 628,500 0.41
315001 320000 1 319,675 0.21
375001 380000 2 756,793 0.49
415001 420000 1 420,000 0.27
445001 450000 1 450,000 0.29
455001 460000 1 456,750 0.30
460001 465000 1 462,500 0.30
465001 470000 1 466,500 0.30
490001 495000 1 494,726 0.32
495001 500000 1 500,000 0.33
545001 550000 2 1,096,931 0.72
570001 575000 1 573,000 0.37
605001 610000 1 610,000 0.40
620001 625000 1 622,500 0.41
660001 665000 1 665,000 0.43
670001 675000 1 673,867 0.44
695001 700000 1 695,475 0.45
810001 815000 1 813,500 0.53
995001 1000000 1 1,000,000 0.65
1050001 1055000 1 1,051,660 0.69
1195001 1200000 1 1,200,000 0.78
2195001 2200000 1 2,200,000 1.44
2300001 2305000 1 2,300,800 1.50
2395001 2400000 1 2,400,000 1.57
2945001 2950000 1 2,948,998 1.92
4175001 4180000 1 4,176,500 2.72
5275001 5280000 1 5,277,000 3.44
5405001 5410000 1 5,407,499 3.53
5780001 5785000 1 5,781,954 3.77
6180001 6185000 1 6,182,329 4.03
7700001 8300000 1 8,250,288 5.38
17935001 17970000 1 17,969,459 11.72
19405001 19440000 1 19,437,418 12.68
20405001 20440000 1 20,437,793 13.33
3,858 153,305,824 100

CATAGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
As At June 30, 2020

Catagories of Shareholders

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their

Number of
Shareholders

Number of
Share held

Percentage

%

Spouce(s) and minor Children 9 78,094,369 90.9402
Charitable Trust 2 9,759 0.0038
Mutual Funds 6 666,999 0.4351
Modaraba Companies 3 308,564 0.2013
Provident Funds 3 187,915 0.1226
Government Institution 1 97,216 0.0634
Joint Stock Companies 42 9,553,733 3.6226
Investment Companies 1 1,000,000 0.6523
Individuals 3,791 67,391,269 43.9587
TOTAL 3,858 153,305,824 100.00
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Operating Results
Sales (gross)

Gross profit
Profit before tax

Financial data

Fixed assets

Capital work in progress
Intangible assets

Long term deposits
Long term investment

Current assets
Current liabilities

Financed by:
Ordinary capital
Reserves

Un appropriated profit

Shareholder’s equity

Loan from sponsors
(interest fee)

Non-current liabilities
Finances and deposits

Funds invested
Earning per-share (Rs.)

Break-up-value (Rs.)

Cash Dividend %
Bonus Share %

Right Share %

(at premium of Rs 10)

Ghani Global Holdings Limited
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SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE

Rs. (in 000)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
11,500 - 2,330,253 2,053,432 2,013,015 1,967,317
- - 638,698 568,634 575,635 569,924
645 239 158,785 181,084 276,612 249,239
- - 3,039,513 2,838,962 2,682,306 2,525,060
- - 4,800 100,146 79,409 41,612
70 70 14,631 70 70 70
: - 68,257 57,756 68,909 68,151
2,779,337 2,779,267 593,000 593,000 500 45133
3,485 1973 1,606,976 1,374,818 2,070,629 963,017
2,670 1,803 1,426,491 654,930 1,534,421 821,671
5 2,779,507 3,900,686 4,309,822 3,367,402 2,821,372
1,533,059 1,533,059 1,322,682 1,247,813 1,247,813 742,746
522,137 522,137 460,198 535,067 535,067 30,000
724,956 724,311 724,141 566,436 429,333 341,627
2,780,152 2,779,507 2,507,021 2,349,316 2,212,213 1,114,373
- - 231,450 638,500 501,200 1,027,969
- - 1,162,215 1,322,006 653,989 679,030
- - 1,393,665 1,960,506 1,155,189 1,706,999
- 2,779,507 3,900,686 4,309,822 3,367,402 2,821,372
- 0.001 1.14 1.04 1.90 213
- 18.13 18.95 18.83 17.73 15.00
- - - - - 16
- - 5 6 - -
- - - - 68 -




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 13th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Ghani Global Holdings Limited (the Company)
will be held on Wednesday October 28, 2020 at 11:30 AM at registered office of the Company at 10-N, Model Town
Ext., Lahore to transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020
together with Directors' and Auditors ' Reports thereon.

. To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2021 and to fix their remuneration.
. Toelectseven (07) directors as fixed by the board under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 for a period of

three years commencing from October 31, 2020.
The names of retiring directors are as under:

1. | Masroor Ahmad Khan 2. | Atique Ahmad Khan 3. | Hafiz Farooq Ahmad
4. | Ayesha Masroor 5. | Rabia Atique 6. | Saira Farooq
7. | Tahir Bashir Khan 8. | Mahmood Ahmad 9. | Farzand Ali
4. Any other business with permission of the Chair.
SPECIAL BUSINESS
9. To approve the Employees Stock Option Scheme, by passing a special resolution proposed in the Statement

under section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2017 annexed to the notice of AGM.

. To approve the investment in Ghani Global Glass Limited being subsidiary/associated company by way of pledge

of shares with the bank(s) of subsidiary company as guarantee by passing the resolution as special resolutions
under section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 as proposed in the Statement under section 134(3) of the
Companies Act 2017 annexed to the notice of AGM.

. To approve the issuance of cross corporate guarantee of Rs. 750 million for Ghani Global Glass Limited (GGGL)

being subsidiary company to the bank(s) for financing facility to the subsidiary by passing the resolution as
special resolutions under section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 as proposed in the Statement under section
134(3) of the Companies Act 2017 annexed to the notice of AGM.

. To approve the issuance of cross corporate guarantee of Rs. 760 million for Ghani Chemical Industries Limited

(GCIL) being subsidiary company to the bank(s) for financing facility to the subsidiary by passing the resolution
as special resolutions under section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 as proposed in the Statement under section

134(3) of the Companies Act 2017 annexed to the notice of AGM. By order of the Board
Place: Lahore FAR ALl
Dated: October 06, 2020 Company Secretary

Notes:

1. BOOK CLOSURE

Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will be accepted for
registration from Thursday, October 22, 2020 to Wednesday, October 28, 2020 (both days inclusive).
Transfer received in order at the office of the share registrar

M/s Vision Consulting Limited
1st Floor,3-C, LDA Flats, Lawrence Road, Lahore.
Telephone No. 042-36375531,36375339
Fax No. 042-36312550, Email: shares@vcl.com.pk
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at the close of business on Wednesday, October 21, 2020 will be treated in time for the purpose of attendance in
the AGM.

2. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
In terms of Section 159(1) of the Companies Act, 2017 ("Act”) the Board of Directors has fixed the number of
elected Directors at 7 (Seven) to be elected in the Annual General Meeting of the Company for the period of next
three years.

Any person who seeks to contest the election to the office of a Director, whether he/she is retiring director or
otherwise, shall file the following documents with the Company Secretary, at its Registered Office, 10-N, Model
Town, Lahore, not later than fourteen days before the date of the meeting:

a) Notice of his / her intention to offer him / herself for the election to the Office of Director in terms of section
159(3).

b) Consenttoactas director of the Company along with consent on Form 28 prescribed under the Act.
c¢) Adetail profile along with office address as required under SECP' SRO 634(1)2014 dated July 10, 2014.
d) Declaration under Clause 3 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019.

e) Declaration that he/she is not ineligible to become a director of a listed company under any provisions of the
Act, the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and any other applicable law,
rules and regulations.

f) Declaration that he/she is aware of his/her duties and powers under the relevant laws, Memorandum &
Articles of Association of the Company and listing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange;

A candidate consenting for the election as director must be a member of the Company at the time of filing of
his/her consent except a person representing a member, which is not a natural person.

Independent Directors will be elected through the process of election of directors in terms of Section 159 of
the Act and they shall meet the criteria laid down under Section 166(2) of the Act.

Pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulation 2018, for the purpose of election of Directors and for any
other agenda item subject to the requirements of Section 143 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2017 members
will be allowed to exercise their right of vote through postal ballot, that is voting by post or through any
electronic mode, in accordance with the requirements and procedure contained in the aforesaid Regulations.

3. DEPOSIT OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY:
As per section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing listed company shall be required to replace its
physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the
Commission, within a period not exceeding four years from the commencement of the Acti.e. May 30, 2017.

In light of above, shareholders holding physical share certificates are encouraged to deposit their shares in
Central Depository by opening CDC sub-accounts with any of the brokers or Investor Accounts maintained
directly with CDC to convert their physical shares into scrip less form. This will facilitate the shareholders to
streamline their information in member's register enabling the Company o effectively communicate with the
shareholders and timely disburse any entitlements. Further, shares held shall remain secure and maintaining
shares in scrip less form allows for swift sale/purchase.

4. ATTENDANCE OF MEETING
A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend, speak and vote
instead of him/her.
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Proxies in order to be effective duly signed, filled and witnessed must be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, along with the attested copies of valid Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or Passport, not less
than 48 hours before the meeting.

CDC Account Holders will have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Gircular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000
issued by the SECP for attending the meeting.

Attendance inthe meeting shall be on production of original CNIC or passport.

. COVID-19 CONTINGENCY PLANNING

Due to current COVID-19 situation, the Government has suspended large public gatherings at one place.
Additionally, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) in terms of its Circular No.5 of 2020
issued on March 17, 2020 and Circular No. 25 of 2020 issued on August 31, 2020 and Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited (PSX) through its notice Ref: PSX/N-372 dated March 19, 2020 has advised companies to modify their
usual planning for general meetings for the safety and well-being of shareholders and the public atlarge.

Considering the SECP's directives, the Company intends to convene this AGM with minimal physical
interaction of shareholders while ensuring compliance with the quorum requirements and requests the
members to consolidate their attendance and voting at the AGM through proxies.

The Company has made arrangements to ensure that all participants, including shareholders, can now
participate in the AGM proceedings via video link. In order to attend the meeting through video link members
are requested to share the below information at corporate@ghaniglobal.com, for their
appointment/registration and proxy verification by or before Thursday October 22, 2020 as per below format.

Full Name | Folio/CDC No. | COMPaY | onio nymper | Fegistered

Name Email Address Cell Number

Video link details and login credentials will be shared with those members whose registered emails containing
allthe particulars are received on or before Thursday October 22, 2020.

Shareholders can also provide their comments and questions for the agenda items of the AGM at the email
address corporate@ghaniglobal.com.

Members are therefore, encouraged to attend the AGM through video link or by consolidating their attendance
through proxies.

6. TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS THROUGH CD:

The Company has circulated annual financial statements to its members through CD at their registered address.
Printed copy of above referred statements can be provided to members upon request. Request Form is available
on website of the company i.e. www.ghaniglobal.com.

. AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANY'S WEBSITE:

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020 have been made available
on Company's website www.ghaniglobal.com in addition to annual and quarterly financial statements for the
prior years.

. CHANGE IN ADDRESS AND CNIC

Members are requested to notify/submit the following information / documents, in case of book entry securities in
CDS to their respective participants and in case of physical shares to the registrar of the Company by quoting their
folio numbers and name of the Company at the below mentioned address of the Company's Share Registrar, if not
earlier notified/submitted:
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= Change in their address, if any

= Members, who have not yet submitted attested photocopy of their valid CNIC are requested to submit the same
along with folio numbers at earliest, directly to the Company's Share Registrar M/s. Vision Consulting Limited, 3-
C, LDAFlats, Lawrence Road, Lahore

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
The material facts concerning the special business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting are given below:

Agenda Item No. 5
Employees Stock Option Scheme (“ES0S”):

Ghani Global Holdings Limited (the Company) consider its employees and employees of its subsidiaries are to be the
most valuable asset and to get their commitment and efforts, the Company firmly believes in providing them
conducive environment and making them feel a sense of security.

Core objective of the scheme is to provide incentives to the key employees of the Company and its subsidiaries for
retention purposes. Moreover, it will provide them a sense of ownership of the Company, which will result in their
better performance towards the growth of their own Company and to give them reward for their services to the
Company.

The Directors of the Company are not interested in the aforementioned special business except to the extent those
executive directors including chief executive which may entitled to the options as an eligible employee.

Full text of Employees Stock Option Scheme to be approved with or without modifications, additions or deletions by
the shareholders of the Company is annexed with the notice dispatched to the shareholders as Annexure “A”.

Draft Proposed Resolutions:

The following resolutions are proposed to be passed as Special Resolution, with or without modifications, additions
or deletions to approve Employees Stock Option Scheme:

RESOLVED THAT, subject to approval/ sanction of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP),
the Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) of the Company under the Companies (Further Issue of Shares)
Regulations, 2020, considered by in this meeting and circulated by the Company along with notice of the
meeting, be and is hereby approved, adopted and agreed.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, subject to the ESOS being approved and sanction by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP), the Company be and is hereby authorized, pursuant to second proviso to
Section 83 & 83A ofthe Companies Act, 2017, to raise further capital in terms of the ESOS and to reserve, allot
and issue further shares of the Company up to a maximum of three percent (3%) in a single year and up to fifteen
percent (15%) in all years of the total issued share capital of the Company in terms of the ESOS to the eligible
employees underthe ESOS without offering such shares to the existing shareholders of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary of the Company be and are
hereby singly authorized to make such amendment, modification, addition or deletion to the ESOS as may be
directed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) or as may otherwise be considered
expedient and such amendment, modification, addition or deletion shall be deemed to be have been approved as
part of the passed Special Resolution without the need of members to pass a fresh Special Resolution.”

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary of the Company be and are
hereby singly authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as may be deemed necessary, proper or
expedient for the purpose of giving effect to the aforementioned Resolutions and for matters connected
therewith orincidental thereto, and to take all necessary steps as required under the law or otherwise and to sign
and execute any petitions, applications, documents, letters of authorities etc. for and on behalf of the Company
inrelation to the foregoing and to further sub-delegate any or all of his powers hereunder.
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RESOLVED FURTHER that once necessary approvals under applicable laws are taken Ordinary Shares of the
Company can be issued to the Entitled Employees of the Company as per the ESOS, which shares shall rank pari
passu with the existing Ordinary Shares of the Company in all respects including dividends, bonus Shares, voting
rights and/ or any corporate benefit, if declared by the Company out of the profit for the ensuing years.

Agenda ltem No. 6
Investment in Associated Company as Pledge of Shares:

On the request of Ghani Global Glass Limited (GGGL) a subsidiary of the Company, the Board of Directors of Ghani
Global Holdings Limited (the Company) has proposed to issue the guarantee to the bank(s) of GGGL in shape of
pledge of 50,098,200 ordinary shares of Ghani Global Glass Limited held by the Company for a maximum period of
three years subject to approval by shareholders of the Company.

Draft Proposed Resolutions:

The following resolutions are proposed to be passed as Special Resolution under section 199 of the Companies Act,
2017:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the requirements of Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, Ghani Global
Holdings Limited (the Company) be and is hereby authorized to provide the guarantee for a maximum period
of three years to the bank(s) for financing facility to Ghani Global Glass Limited (subsidiary company) in
shape of pledge of 50,098,200 ordinary shares of Ghani Global Glass Limited held in the name of the
Company, subject to terms and conditions mentioned in the statement under section 134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2017.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary of the Company be and is
hereby singly authorized to take any and/or all actions to implement and give effect to the above resolution and
to complete any or all necessary required corporate and legal formalities for the purpose of implementation of
the above resolution including pledge and thereafter release of shares in/from Central Depository System
(CDS).

Agenda Item No. 7
Issuance of Cross Corporate Guarantee for GGGL:

On the request of Ghani Global Glass Limited (GGGL) a subsidiary of the Company, the Board of Directors of the
Company has proposed to issue the cross corporate guarantee upto Rs. 750 million to the bank(s) of GGGL for a
maximum period of five years subject to approval by shareholders of the Company.

Draft Proposed Resolutions:

The following resolutions are proposed to be passed as Special Resolution under section 199 of the Companies Act,
2017:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the requirements of Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, Ghani Global
Holdings Limited (the Company) be and is hereby authorized to issue cross corporate guarantee up to Rs.
750 million to the bank(s) for financing facility to its subsidiary company named Ghani Global Glass Limited,
subject to terms and conditions mentioned in the statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act,
2017.

Further Resolved that the Chief Executive and Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby singly
authorized to take any and/or all actions to implement and give effect to the above resolution and to complete
any or all necessary required corporate and legal formalities for the purpose of implementation of the above
resolution.
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Agenda Item No. 8
Issuance of Cross Corporate Guarantee to GCIL:

On the request of Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (GCIL) a subsidiary of the Company, the Board of Directors of
the Company has proposed to issue the cross corporate guarantee upto Rs. 760 million to the bank(s) of GCIL for a
maximum period of five years subject to approval by shareholders of the Company.

Draft Proposed Resolutions:

The following resolutions are proposed to be passed as Special Resolution under section 199 of the Companies Act,
2017:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the requirements of Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, Ghani Global
Holdings Limited (the Company) be and is hereby authorized to issue cross corporate guarantee up to Rs.
760 million to the bank(s) for financing facility to its subsidiary company named Ghani Chemical Industries
Limited, subject to terms and conditions mentioned in the statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies
Act,2017.

Further Resolved that the Chief Executive and Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby singly
authorized to take any and/or all actions to implement and give effect to the above resolution and to complete
any or all necessary required corporate and legal formalities for the purpose of implementation of the above
resolution.

The information required under SRO 1240(1)/ 2017 dated 06 December 2017 regarding agenda item No. 6, 7 and 8
are as under:

(a) DISCLOSURES:

(A) Regarding associated company or associated undertaking:

Agenda ltem No. 6 and 7 No. 8
Investment in Ghani Global Glass Investment in Ghani Chemical
Requirement Limited in shape of pledge of shares Industries Limited in shape of
and Cross Corporate Guarantee cross corporate guarantee
Name of Associated , .
Company Ghani Global Glass Limited (GGGL) Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (GCIL)
- N Subsidiary company with 50.10% holding | Subsidiary company with 99.39% holding
pasis ofrelationship and common directorship. and common directorship.
, Year 2020: Rs.  0.40 2020: (1.39)
tEharg;";%Zfser shareforthelast | voor 2019: Rs.  (1.48) 2019: (0.56)
Year 2018: Rs.  (1.23) 2018: (0.08)

Break-up value per shares, | Rs. 13.72 (with sponsors loan) Rs. 18.25 (with sponsors loan)
based on latest audited Rs. 05.90 (without sponsors loan) Rs. 15.97 (without sponsors loan)
financial statements
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Financial position, including
main items of statement of
financial position and profit
and loss accounts on the
basis of its latest financial
statements.

Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended June 30, 2020 showed:

Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended June 30, 2020 showed:

Rupees
Profit& Loss: in “000”
Sales (net) 1,297,084
Gross profit 287,286
Admin expenses (61,253)
Other income 1618
Profit after taxation 40,476
Financial Position:
non-current assets 1,519,046
Current assets 915,864
| Total Assets 2,434,910 |
Issued, subscribed and
paid Up Capital 1,000,000
Accumulated loss (409,294)
Loan from sponsors 781,660
Total equity 1,372,36
Non- current liabilities 287,99
Current liabilities 774,547
Total Equity and
Liabilities 2,434,910

Rupees
Profit& Loss: in “000”
Sales (net) 2,049,031
Gross profit 493,699
Admin expenses (130,318)
Other income 28,772
Finance Cost (320,816)
Loss after taxation (160,831)
Financial Position:
Operating fixed assets 3,906,985
Capital work in progress 31,305
Other non-current assets 97,192
Current assets 1,339,955
Total Assets 5,375,437
Paid up Capital 1,150,000
Capital Reserve-Share
Premium 913,951
Accumulated Loss (227,864)
Loan from sponsors 262,480
Total equity 2,098,567
Non- current liabilities 1,422,596
Current liabilities 1,854,274
Total Equity and
Liabilities 5,375,437

(B) General Disclosures:

Maximum amount of
investment to be made

- Pledge of 50,098,200 shares for a
period of three years, market value as
on 02-10-2020 (Rs.13.50)

Rs. 676.325 million.

- Upto Rs. 750 million in shape o
issuance of Cross Corporate
Guarantee

Upto Rs. 760 million in shape of
issuance of Cross Corporate
Guarantee
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Purpose,

- To facilitate the subsidiary company
to obtain finance facility for its
proposed expansion plan.

- To meet the security requirements of
Bank(s)

To meet the security requirements
of Bank(s).

Source of funds to be utilized
for investment.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Salient features of the
agreement  (if any) with
associated company  or
associated undertaking with
regards to proposed
investment.

NIL

NIL

Direct or indirect interest of

Currently shareholding position of the

Currently shareholding position of the

directors, sponsors, majority
shareholders  and  their
relatives , if any, in the
associates company  or
associated undertaking or the
transaction under
consideration:

following  directors and  majority
shareholders of the Company (Ghani
Global Holdings Limited) in subsidiary
company (GGGL) is as under:

Names of Number of  Holding
Directors Shares %
Mr. Masroor

Ahmad Khan 1,000 0.001
Mr. Atique

Ahmad Khan 1,000 0.001
Hafiz Farooq

Ahmad 1,000 0.001
Mr. Tahir

Bashir Khan 1,539,550 1.54
Mr. Mahmood

Ahmad 25 0.00
Mrs. Ayesha

Masroor - -
Mrs. Rabia

Atique 1,000 0.001
Mrs. Saira

Farooq 1,000 0.001
Mr. Farzand

Ali 4,000 0.004

following  directors and  majority
shareholders of the Company (Ghani
Global Holdings Limited) in associated
company (GCIL) is as under:

Names of
Directors

Number of Holding
Shares %

Mr. Masroor

Ahmad Khan 1 0.00
Mr. Atique

Ahmad Khan 1 0.00
Hafiz Farooq

Ahmad 1 0.00
Mr. Tahir

Bashir Khan - -

Mr. Mahmood
Ahmad - -

Mrs. Ayesha

Masroor 1 0.00

Mrs. Rabia
Atique - -

Mrs. Saira
Farooq - -

Mr. Farzand
Ali - -

Ghani Global Holdings Limited 34




Ghani Global

Holdings Ltd. 50,098,200 50.10
GGGL holds no shares in GGHL. The
Sponsors directors of GGGL holds the
following shares in GGHL:

Names of Number of Holding
Directors Shares %
Mr. Masroor

Ahmad Khan 20,437,793 13.31
Mr. Atique

Ahmad Khan 17,969,459 11.72
Hafiz Farooq

Ahmad 19,437,418 12.67
Mr. Tahir

Bashir Khan 27 0.00
Mr. Mahmood

Ahmad 33,185 0.002
Mrs. Ayesha

Masroor 5,781,954 3.77
Mrs. Rabia

Atique 8,250,288 5.38
Mrs. Saira

Farooq 6,182,329 4.03
Mr. Farzand

Ali 1,916 0.001

Ghani Global

Holdings Ltd. 114,299,966  99.39
GCIL holds no shares in GGHL. The
Sponsors directors of GCIL holds the
following shares in GGHL.:

Names of
Directors

Number of Holding
Shares %

Mr. Masroor
Ahmad Khan 20,437,793  13.31

Mr. Atique

Ahmad Khan 17,969,459  11.72
Hafiz Farooq

Ahmad 19,437,418  12.67
Mrs. Ayesha

Masroor 5,781,954 3.77

Ms. Dania
Atique - -

Ms. Maha
Faroog - -

Mr. M. Hanif - -

Already investment
associated company.

in

GGGL is subsidiary of Company and cost
of investment (of 50.10%) is Rs. 722.316
million.

GGGL is listed subsidiary of the Company
and detailed accounts are available at
www. ghaniglobalglass.com

GCIL is subsidiary of Company and cost
of investment (of 90.39%) is
Rs. 2,056.991 million.

GCIL is unlisted subsidiary of the
Company and detailed accounts are
available at www.ghaniglobal.com

Any other important details
necessary for the member to

understand the transaction

GGGL is a subsidiary of the Company.
Proposed pledge of shares is to facilitate
the subsidiary company to obtain financial
facility for its proposed expansion plan

GCIL is a subsidiary of the Company.
Proposed issuance of cross corporate
guarantee is to meet the security
requirements of the Bank(s).

Annual Report 2020

35



(b) In case of Investments in the form of Guarantees

Category wise amount of
investments

- Pledge of 50,098,200 shares with
cost of Rs. 722.316 million

- Cross Corporate Guarantee upto
Rs. 750 million

Cross Corporate Guarantee upto Rs. 760
million

Average borrowing cost of
the investing company

- In case of pledge of shares
Not Applicable.

- In case of Cross Corporate Guarantee
commission on guarantee
@ 0.10% per quarter.

Commission on guarantee @ 0.10% per
quarter.

Rate of interest, markup,
profit, fees or commission
etc to be charged

- Pledge of share fee @ 1.50 paisa
per share/quarter.
Commission @ 0.10% per quarter.

Commission @ 0.10% per quarter.

Particulars  of  collateral
security to be obtained in
relation to the proposed
investment.

Demand Promissory Note of subsidiary
company.

Demand Promissory Note of subsidiary
company.

If the investment carry
conversion features:

Not applicable

Not applicable

Repayment schedule
And terms & conditions of
loans or advances

In case of Pledge of Shares

- Pledge of Shares are for a period of
three years.

- Pledge of shares fee on quarterly
basis

- Collateral security(s) from subsidiary
company.

- All cost/expenses etc. of Pledge
/Release of shares shall be paid by
subsidiary company.

- any other term or condition approved
by shareholders of the Company.

In case of Cross Corporate Guarantee

- Cross Corporate Guarantee for a
maximum period of five years.

- Commission on quarterly basis.

- Collateral security(s) from subsidiary
company as Demand Promissory Note.

- Any other terms and condition
approved by shareholders of the
Company.

Cross Corporate Guarantee for a
maximum period of five years.
Commission on quarterly basis.
Collateral security(s) from subsidiary
company as Demand Promissory
Note.

Any other terms and condition
approved by shareholders of the
Company.

In pursuance to Regulation No. 3 (3) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated
Undertakings) Regulations, 2017 under SRO 1240(1)/2017 dated 6" December 2017, the directors of the
Company have carried out due diligence for the proposed investment in irs subsidiaries companies i.e. Ghani
Global Glass Limited and Ghani Chemical Industries Limited.

The following documents shall be available to the members of the Company for inspection in the annual general
meeting being hold on October 28, 2020:

1. Recommendations of due diligence report of investing company.
2. Latest annual audited financial statements of subsidiary company.
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Indepandent Auditor's Report

To the members of Ghani Global Holdings Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have sudited the annexed unconsalidated financial statements of Ghani Glabal Holdings Limited which
comprise e unconsolldated statament of financial position a5 8t June 30, 2020, and the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of comprebensive income, the unconsofidated
statement of changes in equity, the unconsclidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the unconsolidated financial statements. including a8 summary of significant accounting palicies and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have oblained all the information and explanations as described
in the Basic for Qualified Opinkon paragraph which, to tha bast of cur knowladge and bellel, were roceesary
for the purposes of the audit.

Im our opinion, axcept for the effects of matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion parsgraph, and to
v best of our information and according o the explanations given io us, the unconscdidatad statement of
fnancial position, the unconsalidated statement of profit or loss, the unconsolidated statement of changes in
equity end the unconsoldiated statement of cash fiows together with the notes forming part thereof conform
#ith the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Carmpanies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), In the manner so required and respectively give a trug and falr viaw of
the state of the Company's affairs as al June 30, 2020 and of the profit, comprehensive income, the changes
n equity and its cash flows for the year then anded,

ZFasis for Gualified Opinion

Afe conducted our awdit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {ISAs) as applicable in
Fakistan. Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Respansibilities for
e Audit of the unconsolidaled financiad statements section of our report. We are independant of the
Jompany in accondance with the Intemational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Elhics for
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we
1ave fulfilled aur other ethical responsibilities in sccordance with the Code, We bebevie that the audit evidence
we have ohilained is sulficiant and appropriste to provide & basis for our gualifind audit apinion.

d) As fully explained in note 1.1 and nota 10.1.2 fo these unconsolidated financial statements, subsaguent
o coamplelion of thoe Schome of Compromises, Armangement and Reconstruchon and transfer of
manufaciuring underiaking to the subsidiary company, i.e. Ghani Chemical Indystries Limited on Juby 8,
2019, the legal and precedural formalities including registration / updation of the name of the subsidiary
company with the ralevant departments / utility companies could not be completad till February 29, 2020
Due to cerain inharent impedimeants of such routing; the impact of non-compliance, if any, cannat be
ascartained at this point of time,

ey Audit Matters

ey awdif matiers are those matiers that, in cur professional judgment, were of maost significance in our audit
i the unconsolidated financial statemenis of the current pericd. These matters wers addressed in the context
i our audit of the unconsolidated financial stalements as a whale, and in forming our opinion thenean, and

we do nat provide & separate opinion on these matters, Except for matter referrad in basis of qualified opinion;
allowing is the key audit matter:

Fey Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of Investments

Tha Company has made significant investments in
subsidiaries amounting to Rupees 2,779 267 million
as at reporting date and afe casrried at cost less

N\ e
e o e ccsmleieptet e L e

Annual Report 2020 | 38



Rizwan & Comparny

CHARTERED ACEGLI MTANTE

-

D

mpaimen| loss. Refer o note &
unconsalidated financial statemonts

i ihe

In assessing whether thore was any impairment of
the carmying value of imvestiments i Subsidipres;
managameant determinges the recoverable amounts
based on higher of its value in use and its fair value
ss costs o sefl

The estimation of the recovarable amaunt invohmes
isgmcan! judgmonts, including assumplons around
the current and fulere market conditions. forecast
cagh flows, discount rales and any other asssats
underpinning the necoverable amound. This, in tum;,
affected wwm  azscasmant of the rigk that the
wnconsolidated  financial  statements may be
materislly misstated and, henca, necessiiated us fo
devate aur significant Eme and resources to address
the risk successfully. Therefore, we |dentifisd the
vakration of investrments o8 a ey audd matier.

oFiK

i e ot ke it e
[ ey

Cwur audit proceduras to assess the classification and
valuation of financial inslruments, amangst others,
ineluded tha following:

obtaining an w of and the
design and operating effectivenass of contrals
designed by mansgement for wvaluation of
investiments and determination of peowision for
impairment against respactive invesimeanis;
invohing our internal valuation specialists to
assist i evaluating the valuation fechmigqies,
assumptions and methodologies used by
management for valuation of mvwestments, In
paricular, relatng to cash fRow ;
gronuth fates. terminal values and discount m'naﬁ
testing tha mathematical ascuracy and integrily
of the respective. inparment workings:

- conducting sensitivity analyées around the key
inputs;

I's assessment of the

evaliating
indicators and impairmant t@stng and comparing
the recoverable amount of underlying
investmants with thew cosi (o ensure Company's
palicy for impairment i congistently appolied and
appropriately recognized, and

- =Sssessing the adequacy of discloswies in the

uncensolidated financial  sistemonts |
accordance  with  the applicanle  financial
repariing frameworic

Information Othor than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other infarmatan, The other infarmation campriges the information iIncluded
in the Direciors’ Repert, but doss not include the unconsolidatad financial statements and cur avditor's raport
thereon.

Dwr opinion on the unconsolidated financial slatements does not cover the other information and we do nat
Bxpress any form of ESSUrENCEe CONGIESION herneon

In cannection with our audit of the uncongoiidaled nancial statements, dur responsibility s to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is malenally inconsistint with the
uncgnsofidated fnancial slatements or aur knowledoge oblained in the audit or otherwise appears o be
materially misstaied. If, based an the work we have pedormed, we conclude thal there |8 a matersal
misstatement of this other mformation, we are reguired o report that fact We have nothing to repodt in this
regasd

Responsibilitics of Management and Baard of Directors for the Unconsolldated Financial Statemonts

Managemen! s responsible for fhe preparation and fair presentation of the unconschdated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporling standards as applcable in Pakistan and the
requiraments of Companies Act, 2017(XEX of 2017) and for such nternal conirol as management determines
is necessary Lo enabla the prepamation of the uncansolidated financial siatements that are free from material
misstatemant, whalher due 19 fraud or arar

In pfepaning the unconsolidaied financial stalements, mansgament i responsible for assessing the
Company s ability to continue as a going concen, discioging, as applicable. maors refaled to going concom

o
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and using the going concemn basis of ascounting unless management eithes intends to liquidate the Company
or i cease operabions, of has no realistic akernative but to do 50. 3

Beard of directors are responsibie for oversesing the Company's financial reporiing process
Auditer's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Dur objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the uncensolidated financial statameants as
a whole are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or eror, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an
apdit conducted in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatersents can arise from fraud or ermor and are considered material if, indhvidually o In the
aggregate, they could reasenably be expected to influance the economic decisions of USers taken on the basis
of these uncansolidated financial staterments

As part of an audit in accordancs with 1SAs as applicabla in Pakistan, we exercise professaonal judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 'We alsal

« identify and assess the risks of material misstatesnant of the unconsohdated financial statements,
whether due ko fraud or erar, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate 1o provide 5 basis for our opinion. The msk of nat deteching
a material misstaternant resuling from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invohie coliusion, forgery, intenticnal omissions, misrepresamations, or the overrida of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal conirol refevant to the audit in order to design audit procadures that
are appropriate in the crcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivenass
of the Company's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriatensss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and rélated disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accouwnting and,
basad an the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unceriainty exisis related fo events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a gaing concem. i we conclude
that & material uncertainty axists, we are required lo draw attention in cur auditor's report to the related
disclasures in the unconsolidated financial statéments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our apinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obiained up to the date of aur auditar's
report. Howewver, future events of eonditions may cause the Company to cease 1o continue as a going
CONCEN

s FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure ard content of the unconsolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated hnancial SIaeMents reprasent thiez uncheslying
transactions and events in a manner thal achieves fair praseatation

Wi cammunicate with the Board of Directors regarding, amaong other matiers, the planned scope and-timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, inchuding any sgnificant deficiencies in intemal control that we identify
during our audit

We also provide the Board of Direciors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requiraments regarding independence, and to commurncate with them all relationships and slher matters that
may ressonably be thought to bear on our independance, and where applicable, retated ssfeguands

From the maters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determing those matters that ware of most
significanca in the audit of the unconsolidated financial statements of the curment period and are therefore the
key audit matiers. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless kEw or regulation preciudes public
disclosure about the mattar or when, in extremaly rare circumstances, we determins that a ratter should nol
b communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of daing so would reasonably be expected
to autweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

e
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Rizwan & Company 3 a"“*
CHARTERED A COOUMTANTS Rrcimb s cleg M i

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirernents
Based on aur audit, we furthar repert that in our opinian;

a} axcepl for the effects of matter dascribed in the Basis for Qualified Cpinion paragraph, proper beoks
of account hawve been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 20197).

b} except for the affacts of matter descrbad in the Basls for Qualified Opinicn paragraph, the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, the
unconsolidated staternent of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in
gquity and the unconsclidated statement of cash fiows logether with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017) and are in agreemant with the
books of accouwnt and retums;

o) except for the effects of matter described in the Basis for Qualified Cpinion paragraph, investments
made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended durng the year were for the purpose of the
Company's business. and

d) no Zakat was deductible at scurce undar the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (X1l of 1880).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Imran Bashir,

—
Ei - -~ th Lo
RICampany
T 1IN Ch sred A tants
wow 02 0CT 2020 _\N coountan
t
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Ghani Global Holdings Limited

Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2020

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Intangible assets

Long term investments

Current Assets

Loans and advances

Tax refunds due from government
Bank balances - current account

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
Capital reserve - share premium

Retained earnings

Non current liabilities
Current liabilities
Accrued liabilities
Unpaid dividend
Income tax payable

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

\ <

Atique Ahmad Khan

Note

14

10

e 3

Asim Mahmud

2020 2019
(Rupees '000')

70 70
2,779,267 2,779,267
2,779,337 2,779,337

1,320 1,973
117 -
2,048 -
3,485 1,973
2,782,822 2,781,310
1,533,059 1,533,059
522,137 522,137
724,956 724,311
2,780,152 2,779,507
1,826 890
844 844
- 69
2,670 1,803
2,782,822 2,781,310

Chief Executive

Chief Financial Officer

e 2

Hafiz Farooq Ahmad

Director
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Ghani Global Holdings Limited

Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended June 30, 2020

Gross sales
Less: Sales tax
Net sales

Direct cost
Gross profit / (loss)

Administrative expenses
Other operating expense

Other income
Profit hefore taxation

Income tax expense
Profit after taxation

Earnings per share

Note

11
12

13

14

15

2020 2019

(Rupees '000')

11,500 -
(1,450) -
10,050 -
(10,050) -
(1,050 (1,471)
(1,095) (890)
(2,145) (2,361)
(2,145) (2,361)
2,790 2,600
645 239
- (69)
645 170
0.004 0.001

The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

"<

Atique Ahmad Khan

Chief Executive
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Chief Financial Officer
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Hafiz Farooq Ahmad

Director




Ghani Global Holdings Limited
Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019
(Rupees '000')

Profit after taxation 645 170

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 645 170

The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

\ < e eI

Atique Ahmad Khan Asim Mahmud Hafiz Farooq Ahmad
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director
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Ghani Global Holdings Limited

Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended June 30, 2020

Balance as at July 01, 2018

Total comprehensive income
Transactions with sponsors

Issuance of bonus shares

Issuance of shares pursuance to scheme
Transfer of loan pursuance to scheme
Balance as at June 30, 2019

Total comprehensive income

Balance as at June 30, 2020

Capital reserve

Revenue reserve

Share capital | Share premium Reta!ned Loan from Total
earnings sponsors
(Rupees '000')
1,322,682 460,198 724,141 231,450 2,738,471
- - 170 - 170
66,134 (66,134) - - -

144,243 128,073 - - 272,316
- - - (231,450) (231,450)
210,377 61,939 - (231,450) 40,866
1,533,059 522,137 724,311 - 2,779,507
- - 645 - 645
1,633,059 522,137 724,956 - 2,780,152

The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

\ <

Atique Ahmad Khan

Chief Executive

Ghani Global Holdings Limited 45

W 3

Asim Mahmud

Chief Financial Officer
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Director




Ghani Global Holdings Limited
Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2020

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Effect of working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Loans and advances

Tax refunds due from government

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables

Net cash generated from operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year -

Cash and cash equivalents transferred under Scheme

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2020 2019
(Rupees '000')
645 239
584 (1,129)
(117) -
936 890
1,403 (239)
2,048 -
2,048 -
173,762
- (173,762)
2,048 -

The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

"<

Atique Ahmad Khan
Chief Executive

N3P .
g Hy ey

Asim Mahmud Hafiz Farooq Ahmad

Chief Financial Officer

Director
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Ghani Global Holdings Limited
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

1

1.1

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Ghani Global Holdings Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) on November 19, 2007, converted into public limited
company on February 12, 2008 and became listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange on January 05, 2010. The registered
office of the Company is situated at 10-N Model Town Extension, Lahore. The principal activity of the Company is to
manage investments in its subsidiaries.

These unconsolidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company in which investment in
subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Consolidated financial statements of the
Company are prepared and presented separately. The Company has the following long term investment:

2020 2019
Holding% Holding%
Subsidiary Companies
Ghani Chemical Industries Limited 99.39 99.39
Ghani Global Glass Limited 50.10 50.10

As per Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction (the Scheme) as sanctioned by the Honourable
Lahore High Court, Lahore on February 06, 2019, the Parent Company transferred its manufacturing undertaking to the
Company on July 08, 2019 after the effective date. After transfer of manufacturing undertaking, certain bills, invoices
and contracts relating to the company’s business activities continued in the name of the Company due to the
completion of legal and procedural formalities. Consequently, till February 29, 2020; the Company routed transactions
in its books of accounts on account of utilities, supplies, imports, local stores and spares to subsidiary company, i.e.
Ghani Chemical Industries Limited. The above stated transactions have been recorded to absorb the impact of Sales
Tax Input available in sales tax records of the Company, that could have been lost in absence of any legitimate sales tax
output available to the Company. The summary of the transactions has been given hereunder:

2020
(Rupees '000)

Transaction with Subsidiary Company

Sales 1,069,109
Direct cost
Purchases 269,078
Fuel and power 330,205
Vehicle running expenses 65,131
Import 390,390
Others 14,305
1,069,109
Net effect -
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2
2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of such
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
are notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. However, provisions of and the directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017 have been followed where those provisions are not consistent with the requirements of the IFRSs
as notified under the Companies Act, 2017.

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of such
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
are notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. However, provisions of and the directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017 have been followed where those provisions are not consistent with the requirements of the IFRSs
as notified under the Companies Act, 2017.

INITIAL APPLICATION OF STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO EXISTING STANDARDS

a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in
current year.

A number of new or amended standards became applicable for the current reporting period, and the Company had to
change its accounting policies and make adjustments as a result of adopting the following standards:

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ - IFRS 16 replaces the previous lease standard: IAS 17 Leases. It will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the unconsolidated statement of financial position, as the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low value leases. The impact of this standard has been
given in note 4.1.1.

IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01,
2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The
interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax.

Amendment to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 01, 2019). For a debt instrument to be eligible for measurement at amortised cost
or FVOCI, IFRS 9 requires its contractual cash flows to meet the SPPI criterion - i.e. the cash flows are 'solely payments
of principal and interest'. Some prepayment options could result in the party that triggers the early termination receiving
compensation from the other party (negative compensation). The amendment allows that financial assets containing
prepayment features with negative compensation can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) if they meet the other relevant requirements of IFRS 9. The application of amendment is
not likely to have an impact on the Company's unconsolidated financial statements.
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- Amendment to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after January 01, 2019). The amendment will affect companies
that finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable
future (referred to as long-term interests or 'LTI'). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the
scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The
application of amendment has no impact on Company's unconsolidated financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits'- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a
defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net
interest for the period; and the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any
settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The application of amendment has
no impact on the Company's unconsolidated financial statements.

- Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following
approved accounting standards:

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting
treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A
company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A
company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the
business.

- IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including
payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that
generates the distributable profits.

- IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings, any
borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

There are other amendments to published approved accounting and reporting standards and interpretations that are
applicable for the financial year beginning on July 01, 2019 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any
significant effect on the Company’s financial reporting and operations and, therefore, have not been presented in these
unconsolidated financial statements.

b) New accounting standards, amendments and IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective.

There are number of other standards, amendments to the published approved accounting and reporting standards and
interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Company and, therefore, have not been
presented in these financial unconsolidated statements.

- Amendment to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Definition of a Business (effective for business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after January 01, 2020). The IASB has
issued amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired a
business or a group of assets. The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities
and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The amendments include an election to use a concentration test. The standard is effective for
transactions in the future and therefore would not have an impact on past unconsolidated financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020). The amendments are
intended to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying
concept of materiality in [FRS Standards. In addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to make materiality
judgments when preparing their general purpose financial statements in accordance with IFRS Standards.
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On March 29, 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately contains changes that will set a new direction for
IFRS in the future. The Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the IASB to develop standards and to assist
the IFRS Interpretations Committee in interpreting them. It does not override the requirements of individual IFRSs and
any inconsistencies with the revised Framework will be subject to the usual due process — this means that the overall
impact on standard setting may take some time to crystallise. The companies may use the Framework as a reference
for selecting their accounting policies in the absence of specific IFRS requirements. In these cases, companies should
review those policies and apply the new guidance retrospectively as of January 01, 2020, unless the new guidance
contains specific scope outs.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 -The amendments in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020) clarify that entities would continue to apply certain hedge accounting
requirements assuming that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows and cash flows from the
hedging instrument are based will not be altered as a result of interest rate benchmark reform.

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) - The amendment provides lessees with an exemption
from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification.

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) effective for the annual period beginning on
or after January 01, 2022. These amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is
classified as current. The standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the
assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.

Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16); The amendments prohibit
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while
bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those
items, in profit or loss.

The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after January 01, 2022:

- IFRS 1 - The amendment permits a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1 to measure cumulative
translation differences using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to IFRSs.

- IFRS 9 - The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the
borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf.

- IFRS 16 — The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 removes from the example the
illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives are
illustrated in that example.

- IAS 41 - The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation cash
flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique.

The above new standards, amendments and interpretations are not likely to have an impact on unconsolidated
Company’s financial statements. There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved
accounting standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been
presented here.
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2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pak rupee, which is the functional and reporting currency
for the Company.

3 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

3.1 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for valuation
of certain financial instruments at fair value and certain liabilities at amortised cost. In these financial statements, except
for the amounts reflected in the unconsolidated statement of cash flows, all transactions have been accounted for on
accrual basis.

3.2 Significant accounting judgments and critical accounting estimates / assumptions

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s
unconsolidated financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are as
follows:

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s
unconsolidated financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are as
follows:

a) Taxation
The Company takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by appellate authorities.
Instances where the Company's view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment
and appellate stages and where the Company considers that its views on items of material nature is in accordance
with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

b) Allowance for expected credit loss
The Company reviews its expected credit loss as per the requirement of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments -
Recognition and Measurement' for financial assets as at each reporting date to assess whether allowance should
be recorded in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. In particular, judgment by management is required in
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provision required.
Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in
future changes to the allowances.

c) Recoverable amount of assets / cash generating units and impairment
The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its assets and cash generating units for possible
impairment and makes formal estimates of recoverable amount, if there is any such indication. In making
estimates of future cash flows from investments in subsidiary and associate, the management considers future
dividend stream and an estimate of the terminal value of these investments, which are subject to change.
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41

41.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are set-out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company has adopted IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ commencing July 01, 2019 which is effective from accounting period
beginning on or after January 01, 2019:

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

Effective January 01, 2019, the Company has adopted IFRS 16, “Leases” which replaces existing guidance on
accounting for leases, including IAS 17 “Leases”, IFRIC 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”,
SIC-15 “Operating Leases - Incentive” and SIC-27 “Evaluating the substance of transactions involving the legal form of
a Lease”. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a
right-of-use asset representing its right-of use of the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligations to
make lease payments. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases
as finance or operating leases.

The Company adopted IFRS 16 using modified retrospective approach with the date of initial application of July 01,
2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the
standard recognised at the date of initial application. Accordingly the information presented for prior year has not been
restated. The accounting polices relating to Company’s right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are as follows:

Lease liabilities and right-of-use assets

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

From July 1, 2019, leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities at the date at which the
leased assets are available for use by the Company.

The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives receivable. The extension and termination options
are incorporated in determination of lease term only when the Company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.
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4.2

4.3

4.4

The lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. They are
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments or an index
or rate, change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if
the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. The
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the respective right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of that right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liabilities adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentive received. The right-of-use assets are amortised on a straight-line method over the lease term as this
method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the
corresponding lease liability.

There is no impact on these unconsolidated financial statements upon adoption of IFRS 16, Leases.

Intangible assets

Gooadwill
Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition (fair value of consideration paid) and the fair
value of the net identifiable assets acquired. Goodwill is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost. As per requirement of IAS 27 in separate financial statements at
subsequent reporting dates, the recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any,
and carrying amounts of investments are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized as an expense in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Where impairment losses subsequently reverse, the carrying amounts of the
investments are increased to the revised recoverable amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. A
reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

The profit or loss of the subsidiaries is carried forward in respective financial statements and not dealt within
unconsolidated these financial statements except to the extent of dividend declared by the subsidiary which is
recognized in other income. Gain and loss on disposal of such investment is included in other income. When the
disposal of investment in subsidiary resulted in loss of control such that it becomes an associate, the retained
investment is carried at cost.

The profit or loss of the subsidiaries is carried forward in respective financial statements and not dealt within
unconsolidated these financial statements except to the extent of dividend declared by the subsidiary which is
recognized in other income. Gain and loss on disposal of such investment is included in other income. When the
disposal of investment in subsidiary resulted in loss of control such that it becomes an associate, the retained
investment is carried at cost.

Loans and advances

These are initially recognized at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given. The Company assesses at each
reporting date whether there is any indication that assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying
amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount.
Where carrying value exceed recoverable amount, assets are written down to the recoverable amount and the difference
is charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.71

a)

b)

4.1.2

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the unconsolidated statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of
cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and cash at bank which are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at amortized cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in the future for goods and services received.

Financial instruments
Initial Recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given or
received. These are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost or cost as the case may be.

Classification of financial assets

The Company classifies its financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss, at fair value through other
comprehensive income, or at amortised cost. The Company determines the classification of financial assets at initial
recognition. The classification of instruments (other than equity instruments) is driven by the Company’s business
model for managing the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are recognised subsequently at amortised cost. Financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at 'fair value through other comprehensive
income'. By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at 'fair value through profit or loss'.

Classification of financial liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or at amortised cost. Financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at fair value through profit or loss
(such as instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Company has opted to measure them at fair value through
profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at
amortised cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recorded at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held
at fair value through profit or loss are included in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Where management has opted to recognise a financial liability
at fair value through profit or loss, any changes associated with the Company’s own credit risk will be recognized in
other unconsolidated comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss.
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4.1.3

4.7.4

4.1.5

4.8

Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets
expire or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and rewards of ownership to
another entity. On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In addition, on
derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. In
contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected on initial recognition to
measure at fair value through unconsolidated other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Company derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are discharged or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Off setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated statement of financial
position if the Company has a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of assets - Non financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is greater of its
value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present values using a pre tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the assets or cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on pro rata basis.
Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indication that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used in
determining the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset's carrying amount
after the reversal does not exceed carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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4.9

4.10

411

4.12

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when or as performance obligations are satisfied by transferring control of a promised service to
a customer at a point in time. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding
discounts, rebates and government levies. The details are as follows:

- Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, i.e. on the date of
book closure of the investee company declaring the dividend;

- Gains and losses arising on disposal of investments are included in income in the year in which these are disposed
of;

- Return on bank deposits is recognised on time proportion using the effective rate of return;

- Commission income on corporate guarantee is recognised on accrual basis as per agreement; and

- Miscellaneous income is recognised on receipt basis.

Ordinary share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as share capital.

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income is the change in equity resulting from transactions and other events, other than changes
resulting from transactions with shareholders in their capacity as shareholders. Total comprehensive income comprises
all components of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income comprises items of
income and expense, including reclassification adjustments, that are not recognized in profit or loss as required or
permitted by approved accounting standards.

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in profit or loss except to

the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in
other comprehensive income.

Current

Provision for taxation is based on taxable income at current rates after taking into account tax rebates and credits
available, if any or minimum tax on turnover or alternate corporate tax on accounting profit and tax paid under final tax
regime under relevant provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments,
where considered necessary, to provision for taxation made in previous years arising from orders under Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 passed during the year or any previous year(s).

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The
amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities, using the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation. In this regard, the effects on deferred
taxation of the portion of income expected to be subject to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the
requirements of Accounting Technical Release — 27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
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4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

417

The Company recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable
future will be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss is recognised outside
the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be
issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Related party transactions and transfer pricing

Transactions and contracts with the related parties are based on the policy that all transactions between the Company
and related parties are carried out at an arm’s length.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are
measured at the present value of expected expenditure, discounted at a pre-tax rate reflects current market assessment
of the time value of money and the risk specific to the obligation. However, provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liabilities are disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises
from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Dividend

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which dividends are
approved by the Board of Directors or Company’s shareholders as the case maybe.
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5.1

6.1

6.1.1

6.2

6.2.1

2020 2019
(Rupees '000')

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill 70 70

Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition (fair value of the consideration paid) and the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired at the time of merger of Ghani Southern Gases (Private) Limited with and into Ghani Global Holdings
Limited (formerly Ghani Gases Limited).

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000")

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS - AT COST

Subsidiary companies

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited - Unquoted

114,300,000 (2019: 114,300,000) fully paid ordinary shares Rupees 10

each - Holding 99.39% (2019: 99.39%) 6.1 2,056,951 2,056,951

Ghani Global Glass Limited - Quoted
50,098,200 fully paid ordinary shares (2019: 50,098,200) of Rupees 10

gach - Holding 50.10% (2019: 50.10 %) 6.2 722,316 ’ ;%gég
2,1 19!251 ) )

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited - Unquoted

Opening carrying value 2,056,951 143,000
100,000,000 shares of Rupees 10 each pursuance of Scheme of

Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction - 1,913,951
Less: Impairment loss - -
Closing carrying value 2,056,951 2,056,951

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on November 23, 2015 under
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017), converted into public limited company on April 20, 2017 and is
principally engaged in manufacturing, sales and trading of medical & industrial gases and chemicals. The Company had initially made
investment of Rupees 142.5 million in Ghani Chemical Industries Limited as a result of right issue by Ghani Chemical Industries
Limited under the authority of shareholders to the extent of Rupees 360 million in its meeting held on December 02, 2016. Pursuance
to the Scheme; 100 million shares of Rupees 10 were further issued by Ghani Chemical Industries Limited to the Company against
transfer of net assets of manufacturing undertaking amounting to Rupees 1,913.951 million.

2020 2019
(Rupees '000')

Ghani Global Glass Limited - Quoted

Opening carrying value 722,316 450,000
25,098,282 shares acquired pursuance of Scheme of Compromises,

Arrangement and Reconstruction - 272,316
Less: Impairment loss - -
Closing carrying value 722,316 722,316

Ghani Global Glass Limited was incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) as a
private limited company on October 04, 2007 and was subsequently converted into public company and was listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange and is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of glass tubes, glass-ware, vials and ampoules and chemicals.
Company had initially acquired 25,000,000 shares of Rupees 18 each on January 19, 2017 representing 25% holding in the share
capital of the Ghani Global Glass Limited. Pursuance to the Scheme; the Company had further acquired 25,098,282 shares of Rupees
10 at fair value determined for swap ratio against allotment of 14,424,253 shares of Rupees 10 each at fair value determined for swap
ratio to the sponsoring shareholders of Ghani Global Glass Limited as per swap ratio of 1 share of the Company for 1.74 share of
Ghani Global Glass Limited on February 06, 2019.

Annual Report 2020 | 58



6.3 The Company has assessed and evaluated the recoverable amount of investments in the subsidiary companies as at reporting date
and based on its assessment no material adjustment is required to the carrying amount stated in these unconsolidated financial
statements.

2020 2019
(Rupees '000")

7 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured and considered good

Due from:
Ghani Chemical Industries Limited 1,230 -
Ghani Global Glass Limited 90 1,973
1,320 1,973
7.1 Due from related parties
Maximum
aggregate
Gross due Past due Provision Rever.sa.\I of Written off | Net amount amou_nt at
Name of related party amount amount provision any time
during the
year
(Rupees '000")
2020
Ghani Chemical Industries Limited 1,230 1,230 - - - 1,230 1,230
Ghani Global Glass Limited 90 90 - - - 90 90
1,320 1,320 - - - 1,320 1,320
2019
Ghani Global Glass Limited 1,973 - - - - 1,973 1,973
7.2 Age analysis of amount due from related parties
Amount past due
A t Total
mount not pas 91-365 otal gross

Name of related party due 1-30 days | 31-60 days | 61-90 days 365 days | amount due

days
(Rupees '000")

2020

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited - - - - 1,230 - 1,230

Ghani Global Glass Limited - - - - 90 - 90

- - - - 1,320 - 1,320
2019

Ghani Global Glass Limited 1,973 - - - - - 1,973

2020 2019
(Rupees '000')
8  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL
8.1 Authorized share capital
200,000,000 (2019: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 2,000,000 2,000,000
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2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000')

8.2 Share capital and reserves
122,956,711 (2019: 122,956,711) Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each
fully paid in cash 1,229,567 1,229,567

13,000 (2019: 13,000) Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued for
consideration other than cash under scheme of arrangement for

amalgamation 8.2.1 130 130

14,424,253 (2019: 14,424,253) Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each

issued for consideration other than cash under Scheme of

compromises, arrangement and reconstruction 8.2.2 144,243 144,243

15,911,860 (2019: 15,911,860) Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each

issued as fully paid bonus shares 159,119 159,119
1,533,059 1,533,059

8.2.1 The process for amalgamation of Ghani Southern Gases (Private) Limited with and into the Company as on May 15, 2012 resulted in
issuance of shares for consideration other than cash.

8.2.2 The process for amalgamation of Scheme of compromises, arrangement and reconstruction among the shareholders of Ghani Gases
Limited, Ghani Global Glass Limited and Ghani Chemical Industries Limited as sanctioned by Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore on
February 06, 2019 resulted in issuance of 14,424,253 shares to the sponsoring shareholders of the Ghani Global Glass Limited for
consideration other than cash.

8.2.3 Movement to the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company is as follows:

2020 2019 2020 2019
(No. of Shares) (Rupees '000")
153,305,824 132,268,163  Opening balance 1,533,059 1,322,682
- 6,613,408 Bonus shares issued - 66,134
- 14,424,253 Shares issued pursuance to Scheme of
Compromises, Arrangement and
Reconstruction - 144,243
153,305,824 153,305,824  Closing balance 1,533,059 1,533,059

9  SHARE PREMIUM

This includes balance amount of share premium received by the Company on 2,500,000 ordinary shares at the rate of Rupees 5 per
share, share premium on 7,000,000 ordinary shares issued at Rupees 2.50 each, share premium on 43,019,834 ordinary shares at
the rate of Rupees 10 each and share premium of Rupees 128.073 million on issue of 14,424,253 shares to the sponsors of Ghani
Global Glass Limited under the scheme.

Share premium may be utilized by the Company only for the purpose specified in Section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017. During the
year, the Company has utilised share premium amounting to Rupees Nil (2019: Rupees 66.134 million) with the provisions of Section
81 of the Companies Act, 2017.

10 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
10.1 Contingencies

10.1.1 The Company has provided corporate guarantee amounting to Rupees 744.900 million (2019: Rupees 650 million) to banks against
financing facilities on behalf of its subsidiary company namely Ghani Global Glass Limited.

10.1.2 Based on the legal opinion, due to the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction (the Scheme); the routing of
transactions in order to pass on the impact of sales tax to subsidiary company is in line with the Scheme sanctioned by the Honorable
Court. Therefore, there will be no non-compliance at this point of time, however, at any stage if there will be negative inference; then
the same will be dealt accordingly.
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10.2 Commitments

10.2.1 There are no commitments of the Company as of reporting date.

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000")
11 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Printing and stationery 191 -
Fee and subscription 750 1,311
Others 109 160
1,050 1,471
12 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Legal and professional 190 -
Auditors' Remuneration 121 905 890
1,095 890
12.1 Auditors' Remuneration
Half yearly review and other certifications 155 140
Statutory audit 600 600
Audit of consolidated financial statements 150 150
905 890
13 OTHER INCOME
Commission on corporate guarantee 2,790 2,600
14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Charge for the year:
Current 141 - 69
Deferred .

- 69

14.1 Assessment up to tax year 2019 is finalized (deemed assessment). Current tax is charged on the basis of minimum tax on turnover
under section 113 or Alternate Corporate Tax (ACT) on accounting profit under section 113-C of Income Tax Ordinance 2001,
whichever is higher.

2020 2019
15 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees '000") 645 170
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year (Number) 153,292,824 153,292,824
Earnings per share (Rupees) 0.004 0.001

15.1 Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible instruments in issue as at June 30,
2020 (2019: Nil) which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert is exercised.

16  CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATION

16.1 No remuneration was paid to Chief Executive, directors and executives during the year whereas no meeting fee was paid to directors
for attending board meeting or its committee (2019: Nil).

17  RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties comprise of subsidiary companies, directors of the Company, companies in which directors also hold directorship, key
management personnel and staff retirement benefit funds. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with
various related parties. Detail of related parties (with whom the Company has transacted) along with relationship and transactions with
related parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these unconsolidated financial statements, are as follows:
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171

17.2

17.3
18

19

20

201

Name and nature of relationship

Subsidiary Companies

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited - 99.39% shares held in the Company
Ghani Global Glass Limited - 50.10% shares held in the Company

Transactions with related parties

2020 2019
Nature of Relationship Nature of Transaction (Rupees '000')
Subsidiaries Investment under Scheme of Arrangement - 2,186,267
Guarantee commission 2,790 2,600
Funds received 2,050 -
Sale under note 1.1 1,069,110 -
Purchase under note 1.1 1,079,160 -

Sales, purchases and other transactions with related parties are carried out on commercial terms and conditions.

PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

Currently, number of existing employees is less than the minimum requirements as per the West Pakistan Industrial and Commercial
Employment (Standing Orders) Ordinance, 1968.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Judgments and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments
that are recognized and measured at fair value in these unconsolidated financial statements.

IFRS 13, ‘Fair Value Measurements’ requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects
the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Company is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity - specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices), the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for
unlisted equity securities.

As at reporting date, the Company has no item to report in these levels.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk and profit rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk
management policies and provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency
risk, equity price risk, profit rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.
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The Company’s audit committee monitors compliance with risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. Audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal
audit department. Internal audit department undertakes reviews of risk management controls and procedures, results of which are
reported to audit committee.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the
market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply
and demand of securities and liquidity in the market. The Company incurs financial liabilities to manage its market risk. All such
activities are carried out with the approval of the Board. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk, currency risk and market price
risk.

(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that
exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. The Company is not exposed to currency risks as at reporting date, therefore,
no foreign currency sensitivity is applicable.

(ii) Profit rate risk
Profit rate risk represents the risk that fair values of future cash flows of financial instruments which will fluctuate because of
change in market profit rates. The Company has no significant long-term profit-bearing financial assets. The Company's profit
rate risk arises from financial liabilities. Borrowings obtained at floating rates expose the Company to cash flow profit rate risk.
Borrowings obtained at fixed rate expose the Company to fair value profit rate risk.

At the reporting date the profit rate profile of the Company does not have any profit bearing financial instrument therefore
sensitivity analysis for the floating rate instruments have not been prepared.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in profit rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the Company.

(iii) Other price risk
Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in
the market.

The Company does not have financial assets and liabilities whose fair value or future cash flows will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations. To manage credit risk the Company maintains procedures covering the application for credit approvals,

granting and renewal of counterparty limits and monitoring of exposures against these limits. As part of these processes the
financial viability of all counterparties is regularly monitored and assessed.

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily for other receivables and other financial assets.
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Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was:

2020 2019
(Rupees '000')
Loans and advances 1,320 1,973
Bank balances 2,048 -
3,368 1,973

Concentration of credit risk
The company does not have concentrations of credit risk by reference to type of counterparty. Maximum exposure to credit risk by
type of and Bank balances.

The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to the external credit ratings follows:

Rating 2020 2019
Banks Agency Short term Long term (Rupees '000)
Faysal Bank Limited VIS A1+ AA 2,048 -

After giving due consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these counter
parties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly the credit risk is minimal.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or any other financial assets, or that such obligations will have to be settled in manners unfavorable to the
company.

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation. Management believes the liquidity risk to be low.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Carrying Contractual Less than Between 1 and 5
Amount cash flows 1 year years
(Rupees '000')

June 30, 2020

Accrued liabilities 1,826 1,826 1,826
Unpaid dividend 844 844 844
2,670 2,670 2,670
June 30, 2019
Accrued liabilities 890 890 890 -
Unpaid dividend 844 844 844 -
1,734 1,734 1,734 -

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates effective as
at reporting date. The rates of interest have been disclosed in respective notes to the financial statements.

20.2 Financial instruments by categories
The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in unconsolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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20.3

21

22

2020 2019

Note (Rupees '000')
Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost
Assets as per unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position
Loans and advances 1,320 1,973
Bank balances 2,048 -
3,368 1,973
Liabilities as per unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position
Accrued liabilities 1,826 890
Unpaid dividend 844 844
2,670 1,734

Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide return for shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders and to maintain healthier capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximize shareholders value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in the light of
changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust dividend payments to the
shareholders, return on capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes from the previous year. The Company monitors capital using gearing
ratio, which is debt divided by equity plus net debt. Total capital employed includes ‘total equity’ as shown in the statement of financial
position plus debt. The Company has no debt as at reporting date, owing to which presentation of capital gearing ratio would not be
meaningful for the users of the financial statements.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Company has no employee as of reporting date.

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR SHARIAH COMPLIANT COMPANIES
As per the requirements of the Fourth Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017: Sharia compliant companies and the companies listed on
Islamic Index shall disclose the following:

(i) Advances obtained as per Islamic mode - refer note 10

(i) Shariah compliant bank balances - refer the Statement of Financial Position

(iii) Revenue earned from a sharia compliant business segment - refer the Statement of Profit or Loss.
(iv) The Company have relationship with sharia compliant bank / islamic windows

23 IMPACT OF COVID-19 (CORONAVIRUS)

The outbreak of Covid-19 as a pandemic and consequently imposition of lockdown by Federal and Provincial Governments of Pakistan
(Authorities) has affected global economies as well as Pakistan. However, being the Holding Company, there is no direct impact of
Covid-19 on these unconsolidated financial statements.

24 GENERAL AND CORRESPONDING FIGURES
24.1 Corresponding figures have been reclassified in these unconsolidated financial statements, wherever necessary to facilitate the

comparison and to conform with changes and presentation in the current year. However, no significant reclassifications were made in
these unconsolidated financial statements.

24.2 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees, unless otherwise stated.

25 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

25.1 These unconsolidated financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue in Board of Directors meeting of the Company

held on October 02, 2020.
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ATIQUE AHMAD KHAN ASIM MAHMUD HAFIZ FAROOQ AHMAD

(CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER) (DIRECTOR)
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the members of Ghani Global Holdings Limited
Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Ghani Global Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“the Group"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30,
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatary information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at June 30, 2020 and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Interational Standards on Auditing (15As) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code, We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained (s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

As fully explained in note 1.1 and note 28.1.2 to these consolidated financial statements, subsequent to
completion of the Scheme of Compromisas, Arrangement and Reconstruction and transfer of manufacturing
undertaking by the Holding Company to the its subsidiary company, legal and procedural formalities including
registration / updation of the name of the subsidiary company with the relevant departments / utility companies
could not be completed till February 29, 2020, Due to certain impediments of such routing of the transactions,
the impact of non-compliance, if any, cannot be ascertained at this point of time.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in cur audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinicn on these matters. Following are the key audit matters:

Key audit matter(s)

a) Goodwill and impairment assessment

Refer to note 7 in the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

Ghani Global Group has recognised goodwill of
Rupees 348.694 million pertaining to investments
in Ghani Chemical Industries Limited and Ghani
Global Glass Limited, This has the risk that the
carrying valuas of goodwill may be impaired.

The management has concluded thal there is no
impairment in respect of the goodwill This
conclusion was based on a valug in use model that

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures included, amaong others, using a
valuation expert to assist us in evaluating the
assumptions and methodologies used by the Group, in
particular those relating to the forecasted revenue
growth and profit margins for both the business lines of
the subsidiary companies.

We also focused on the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures about those assumptions to which the
outcome of the impairment test is most sensitive, that
is, those that have the most significant effect on the
determination of the recoverable amount of goodwill,
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required significant management judgement with
respect to the discount rate and the underlying

cash flows, in particular future revenue growth.

b) Stock in trade
Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements

Ghani Global Glass Limited (the *GGGL") is
engaged in manufacturing and sale of glass tubes,
glass ware, vials and ampules, Raw material
comprises of Silica Sand and other inputs. the
GGGEL held inventory of Rupees 277.071 million
(2019: Rupees 264.374 million) which constitutes
11.38% of total assets as at reporting date. The
valuation of stock is assessed on item by item
basis taking into account their usability for market
demand of finished products.

The significance of balance coupled with the
judgment involved in determining as appropriate
costing basis has resulted in the valuation of
inventories especlally finished goods being
identified as Key Audit Matter

¢} Revenue Recognition
Refer to note 4.19 and 30 to the consolidated
financial staternents.

Revenue includes amounts of revenue pertaining
to Ghani Global Glass Limited amounting to
Rupees 1,297.085 million (2019: Rupees 792.024
million) showing an increase of B3.77% as
compared to corresponding year.,

The revenue recognition is identified as a key
audit matter due to its significance as key
indicator for performance of managament and
raises the risk that revenue could be misstated to
meet expectations or targets.

Ghani Global Holdings Limited 68

We performed a range of audit procedures with
respect to inventory items of the GGGL that are!

Physical observation of inventory counts;
obtaining an understanding of internal controls
over valuation of stock in trade and testing, on a
sample basis, their design, implementation and
operating effectiveness;

Test the reasonability of assumptions applied for
valuation methods including allocation of direct
labor and direct attributable overhead costs in
accordance with the applicable accounting
standards; and

To ensure inventory carries at lower of cost or
MRY we performed tesis on the sales prices
secured by the GGGL for similar or comparable
iterns of inventories.

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosure
made in respect of the accounting policies and the
details of inventory balances held by the GGGL at year
end.

We performed a range of audit procedures with
respect to revenue recagnition that are:

Obtained an understanding of the GGGL's
processes and internal controls for  revenue
recognition and on a sample basis, tested the
effectiveness of those controls, specifically in
relation to recognition of revenue and timing
thereof;

Reconciled revenue recorded in the books of
account on a sample basis with underlying
accounting records including dispatch and delivery
documents,

Correlated the revenue transactions with movement
in receivables and cash balances and compared
with the results from our balance confirmation
procedures,

Reviewed on a sample basis, sales fransactions
near the reporting date to assess whether
transactions are recorded in relevant accounting
period; and

Assessed the appropriateness of the GGGL's
accounting policy for recording of sales and
compliance of the policy with IFRS 15 'Revenue
from Contracts with Customers'

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosure
made in these consoclidated financial statements.
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Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consclidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion therson.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consclidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’'s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditer's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We alsa

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

2 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal contral.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consclidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
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modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consclidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, amang other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reascnably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so0 would reascnably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting In this independent auditor’'s report is Imran Bashir

Rizivah & Company
Ch ad A tants
Lahore; U 2 UCT EGZU @ ceotintan
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Ghani Global Holdings Limited and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 5,432,520 4,865,972
Right of use asset 6 24,561 -
Intangible assets 7 357,331 360,293
Long term deposits 8 68,940 67,494
5,883,352 5,293,759
Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 9 206,270 203,794
Stock in trade 10 331,727 307,891
Trade debts 1" 736,995 788,680
Loans and advances 12 115,571 396,798
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 13 84,745 69,943
Tax refunds due from government 141,873 148,999
Advance income tax 14 466,799 558,364
Cash and bank balances 15 152,182 170,317
2,236,162 2,644,786
TOTAL ASSETS 8,119,514 7,938,545
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorized share capital
200,000,000 (2019: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 2,000,000 2,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 16 1,533,059 1,533,059
Capital reserve - share premium 17 522,137 522,137
Unappropriated profit 400,903 539,872
Loan from sponsors 18 1,044,141 1,013,351
Attributable to the equity holders of the Holding Company 3,500,240 3,608,419
Non - Controlling Interests 300,366 281,149
Total equity 3,800,606 3,889,568
Non-current liabilities
Long term financing 19 845,784 473,510
Redeemable capital - Sukuk 20 595,834 595,833
Long term security deposits 21 42,972 34,451
Long term payable 22 14,699 -
Right of use liabilities 23 2,741 -
Deferred liabilities 24 208,563 302,181
1,710,593 1,405,975
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 25 481,761 336,702
Unclaimed dividend 844 844
Accrued profit on financing 26 93,611 80,320
Short term borrowings 27 1,786,151 1,683,471
Current portion of long term liabilities 28 212,998 522,350
Provision for taxation 37 32,950 19,315
2,608,315 2,643,002
Total liabilities 4,318,908 4,048,977
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 8,119,514 7,938,545
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 29 - -

The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATIQUE AHMAD KHAN ASIM MAHMUD HAFIZ FAROOQ AHMAD
(CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER) (DIRECTOR)
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Ghani Global Holdings Limited and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)

Net sales 30 3,312,417 3,074,726
Cost of sales 31 (2,531,430) (2,433,999)
Gross profit 780,987 640,727
Selling and distribution expenses 32 (288,015) (291,369)
Administrative expenses 33 (192,634) (207,481)
Other operating expenses 34 (53,081) (20,950)

(533,730) (519,800)
Other income 35 26,782 21,362
Profit from operations 274,039 142,289
Finance costs 36 (456,647) (313,734)
Loss before taxation (182,608) (171,445)
Taxation 37 62,856 (40,655)
Loss after taxation (119,752) (212,100)
Attributable to:
Owners of the Holding Company (138,969) (138,052)
Non - Controlling Interests 19,217 (74,048)

(119,752) (212,100)
Earnings per share 38 (0.906) (0.901)

The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATIQUE AHMAD KHAN ASIM MAHMUD HAFIZ FAROOQ AHMAD
(CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER) (DIRECTOR)
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Ghani Global Holdings Limited and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019

(Rupees '000)

Loss after taxation (119,752) (212,100)

Other comprehensive income / (10ss) - -

Total comprehensive loss for the year (119,752) (212,100)
Attributable to:

Owners of the Holding Company (138,969) (138,052)
Non - Controlling Interests 19,217 (74,048)

(119,752) (212,100)

The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ATIQUE AHMAD KHAN ASIM MAHMUD HAFIZ FAROOQ AHMAD
(CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER) (DIRECTOR)
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Ghani Global Holdings Limited and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operating activities 39 807,376 276,483
Finance costs paid (443,233) (270,711)
Income tax refunds 237,869 9,855
Income tax paid (165,618) (123,275)

(370,982) (388,131)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 436,394 (111,648)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions in operating fixed assets (48,232) (121,331)
Capital expenditure incurred (605,777) (210,626)
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 1,764 23,767
Long term deposits (1,446) 8,561
Net cash used in investing activities (653,691) (299,629)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term financing 219,671 343,483
Repayments of redeemable capital - Sukuk (162,500) (216,667)
Proceeds against loan from directors 30,790 19,940
Short term borrowings 102,680 183,408
Dividend paid - 9)
Proceeds from long term deposits 8,921 1,026
Net cash generated from financing activities 199,162 331,181
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (18,135) (80,096)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 170,317 177,733
Transfer under the scheme - 72,680
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 152,182 170,317

The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER) (DIRECTOR)
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Ghani Global Holdings Limited and its Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Balance as at June 30, 2018

Issuance of bonus shares

Issuance of shares under scheme of arrangement

NCI upon acquisition of GGGL

Loss attributable to non-controlling interest for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to holding company
Loan received during the year

Balance as at June 30, 2019

Issuance of bonus shares

Income attributable to non-controlling interests for the year
Total comprehensive income attributable to holding company
Sponsors loan transfer upon acquisition

Loan received during the year

Balance as at June 30, 2020

Altribulah_le to
Share Capital c;:::i';:::;:;' U"aps:gri: fated hotlizlifsq_:)l;trhe CO:t‘::II-ing Total equity
Holding Interests
Company
(Rupees "000")
1,322,682 460,198 677,924 2,719,854 6,979 2,726,833
66,134 (66,134) - - - -
144,243 128,073 - 1,006,677 - 1,006,677
- - - - 348,218 348,218
- - - - (74,048) (74,048)
- - (138,052) (138,052) - (138,052)
- - - 19,940 - 19,940
1,533,059 522,137 539,872 3,608,419 281,149 3,889,568
- - (19,217) (19,217) 19,217
- - (119,752) (119,752) - (119,752)
- - - 30,790 - 30,790
1,533,059 522,137 400,903 3,500,240 300,366 3,800,606

The annexed notes from 1 to 52 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

"\

ATIQUE AHMAD KHAN
(CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER)

2

ASIM MAHMUD

(CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)

- r
e d
HAFIZ FAROOQ AHMAD
(DIRECTOR)




Ghani Global Holdings Limited and its Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

1 THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS
The Group consists of:

Holding Company

- Ghani Global Holdings Company Limited
Subsidiary Company

- Ghani Chemical Industries Limited

- Ghani Global Glass Limited

Ghani Global Holdings Limited

The Company was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the
Companies Act, 2017) on November 19, 2007, converted into public limited company on February 12, 2008 and became listed on
Pakistan Stock Exchange on January 05, 2010. The registered office of the Company is situated at 10-N Model Town Extension,
Lahore. The principal activity of the Company is to manage investments in its subsidiaries.

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited

Ghani Chemical Industries Limited was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on November 23, 2015 under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017), converted into public limited company on April 20, 2017. The
Company is principally engaged in manufacturing, sales and trading of medical & industrial gases and chemicals. Ghani Global
Holdings Limited has 99.39% (2019: 99.39%) ownership in the share capital of Ghani Chemical Industries Limited. The registered
office and the head office of the Company is situated at 10-N, Model Town Extension, Lahore. The Company's production facilities
are situated at Phool Nagar, District Kasur and Industrial Zone Port Qasim, Karachi. Further, the Company’s liaison office is situated
in Tarnol, District Rawalpindi.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Ghani Chemical Industries Limited and its subsidiaries
and its subsidiary companies, A-One Prefabs (Private) Limited ("the Subsidiary Company"), Awal Engineering (Private) Limited
("the Subsidiary Company") and A-One Batteries (Private) Limited (“the Subsidiary Company") which are wholly owned subsidiaries
as the Holding Company is the ultimate parent company. Consolidated financial statements are being made to comply with the
requirements of section 228 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Ghani Gobal Glass Limited

Ghani Global Glass Limited was incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017 (then the Companies Ordinance, 1984) as
a private limited company on October 04, 2007 as Ghani Tableware (Private) Limited. Its status was changed to public unlisted
company, consequently its name was changed to Ghani Tableware Limited as on July 24, 2008. Name was further changed to Ghani
Global Glass Limited on January 14, 2009 and became listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange on December 12, 2014 upon merger of
Libaas Textiles Limited with and into the Company. Ghani Global Holdings Limited has 51.10% (2019: 51.10%) ownership in the
share capital of Ghani Global Glass Limited.Ghani Global Glass Limited is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of glass
tubes, glass-ware, vials and ampules and chemicals. Registered office is situated at 10-N, Model Town Extension, Lahore and its
manufacturing units are situated on 52-K.M. Lahore Multan Road, Phool Nagar District Kasur.

1.1 As per Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction (the Scheme) as sanctioned by the Honorable Lahore High Court,
Lahore on February 06, 2019, the Holding Company transferred its manufacturing undertaking to its subsidiary company namely
Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (the GCIL) on July 08, 2019 with effect from effective date. After transfer of manufacturing
undertaking to the GCIL, certain bills, invoices and contracts relating to the GCIL’s business activities continued in the name of the
Holding Company due to the completion of legal and procedural formalities (as fully explained in note 1.1 to the unconsolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company). All such transactions have been eliminated while preparing these consolidated
financial statements.
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The approved accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of such International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017
(the Act), Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified
under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017. However,
provisions of and the directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed where those provisions are not
consistent with the requirements of the IFRSs as notified under the Companies Act, 2017.

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Ghani Global Holdings Limited, formerly known as Ghani
Gases Limited ("the Holding Company") and its subsidiary companies, Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (‘the Subsidiary
Company"), which is 99.39% (2019: 99.39%) and Ghani Global Glass Limited ("the Subsidiary Company"), which is 50.10% (2019:
50.10%).

The Subsidiary Company

A subsidiary company is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. A subsidiary company
is fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and is derecognized from the date the control ceases.
These consolidated financial statements include the Holding Company and the subsidiary companies in which the Holding Company
directly or indirectly controls, beneficially owns or holds more than 50% of the voting securities.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of the subsidiary companies is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gain or losses arising from such measurement are recognized
in the consolidated profit or loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purposes of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, on the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating
units that are expected to benefit from the combination. Goodwill is tested annually or whenever there is an indication of impairment
exists. Impairment loss in respect of goodwill is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and is not reversed in future
periods.

Any contingent considerations to be transferred by the Group is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance with IAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Gontingent consideration that is classified an equity is not re-
measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line by line basis and the carrying value
of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against the subsidiaries’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between the Group companies, are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by the Subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.

Subsidiaries have same reporting period as that of the Holding Company. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
to conform with accounting policies of the Group, wherever needed.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiary without change of control

Transactions with non - controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions - that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the Subsidiary Company is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non - controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is premeasured to its fair value,
with the change in carrying amount recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequent accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed off the related assets or liabilities. This mean that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss.

INITIAL APPICATION OF STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS OR INTERPRETATIONS TO EXISTING STANDARDS
a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year.

A number of new or amended standards became applicable for the current reporting period, and the Group had to change its
accounting policies and make adjustments as a result of adopting the following standards:

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ - IFRS 16 replaces the previous lease standard: IAS 17 Leases. It will result in almost all leases being recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position, as the distinction between operating and finance leases are removed. Under the
new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions
are short-term and low value leases. The impact of this standard has been given in note 4.1.1.

IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2019) clarifies the
accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the
uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax.

Amendment to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2019). For a debt instrument to be eligible for measurement at amortized cost or FVOCI, IFRS 9
requires its contractual cash flows to meet the SPPI criterion - i.e. the cash flows are 'solely payments of principal and interest'.
Some prepayment options could result in the party that triggers the early termination receiving compensation from the other party
(negative compensation). The amendment allows that financial assets containing prepayment features with negative compensation
can be measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) if they meet the other relevant
requirements of IFRS 9. The application of amendment is not likely to have an impact on Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
(effective for annual period beginning on or after January 01, 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities
with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests
or 'LTI). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the
annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The application of amendment has no impact on Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits'- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 01, 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a
company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the period; and the effect
of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other
comprehensive income. The application of amendment has no impact on Group's consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved
accounting standards:

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when
a company increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its
previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its
previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

- IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial
instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable profits.

- 1AS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally
made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

There are other amendments to published approved accounting and reporting standards and interpretations that are applicable for the
financial year beginning on July 01, 2019 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Group’s
financial reporting and operations and, therefore, have not been presented in these consolidated financial statements.

b) New accounting standards, amendments and IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective.

There are number of other standards, amendments to the published approved accounting and reporting standards and interpretations
that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group and, therefore, have not been presented in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Definition of a Business (effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after January 01, 2020). The IASB has issued
amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of
assets. The amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
include an election to use a concentration test. The standard is effective for transactions in the future and therefore would not have
an impact on past financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020). The amendments are intended to make the definition of
material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In
addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to make materiality judgments when preparing their general purpose financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Standards.

On March 29, 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately contains changes that will set a new direction for IFRS in the future. The
Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the IASB to develop standards and to assist the IFRS Interpretations Committee
in interpreting them. It does not override the requirements of individual IFRSs and any inconsistencies with the revised Framework
will be subject to the usual due process — this means that the overall impact on standard setting may take some time to crystallise.
The companies may use the Framework as a reference for selecting their accounting policies in the absence of specific IFRS
requirements. In these cases, companies should review those policies and apply the new guidance retrospectively as of January 01,
2020, unless the new guidance contains specific scope outs.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 -The amendments in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2020) clarify that entities would continue to apply certain hedge accounting requirements
assuming that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows and cash flows from the hedging instrument are based
will not be altered as a result of interest rate benchmark reform.
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2.4

3.1

3.2

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) - The amendment provides lessees with an exemption from assessing
whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification.

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to 1AS 1) effective for the annual period beginning on or after
January 01, 2022. These amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is classified as current.
The standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity’s right at
the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity shall
apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.

Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16); The amendments prohibit deducting from
the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity
recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, in consolidated profit or loss.

The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 01, 2022:

- IFRS 1 - The amendment permits a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to IFRSs.

- IFRS 9 - The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in assessing whether to
derecognise a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf.

- IFRS 16 — The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration of the
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

- IAS 41 - The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique.

The above new standards, amendments and interpretations are not likely to have an impact on Group’s consolidated financial
statements. There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved accounting standards that are not
yet effective and are also not relevant to the Group and therefore, have not been presented here.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak rupee, which is the functional and reporting currency for the Group.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for valuation of certain
financial instruments at fair value and certain liabilities at amortised cost. In these consolidated financial statements, except for the
amounts reflected in the consolidated statement of cash flows, all transactions have been accounted for on accrual basis.

Significant accounting judgments and critical accounting estimates / assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards require the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. The areas where various
assumptions and estimates are significant to the Group’s consolidated financial statements or where judgments were exercised in
application of accounting policies are as follows:
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a)

b)

d)

e)

f)

9)

Income tax

The Group takes into account the current income tax law and the decisions taken by appellate authorities. Instances where the
Group's view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment and appellate stages and where the
Group considers that its views on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent
liabilities.

Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

Management has made estimates of residual values, useful lives and recoverable amounts of certain items of property, plant
and equipment. Any change in these estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of
property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment loss.

Allowance for expected credit 10ss

The Group reviews its expected credit loss as per the requirement of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments - Recognition and
Measurement' for trade debts and other financial assets as at each reporting date to assess whether allowance should be
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. In particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of
the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provision required. Such estimates are based on
assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowances.

Provision for slow moving / obsolete items

The Group reviews the carrying values and impairment of stores, spares and loose tools to assess any diminution in the
respective carrying values and wherever required provision for impairment is made. The calculation of the provision involves the
use of estimates with regard to future estimated use and respective fair value of stores, spares and loose tools.

The Group reviews the carrying values and impairment of stores, spares and loose tools to assess any diminution in the
respective carrying values and wherever required provision for impairment is made. The calculation of the provision involves the
use of estimates with regard to future estimated use and respective fair value of stores, spares and loose tools.

Recoverable amount of assets / cash generating units and impairment

The Group reviews carrying amounts of its assets and cash generating units for possible impairment and makes formal
estimates of recoverable amount, if there is any such indication. In making estimates of future cash flows from investments in
subsidiary and associate, the management considers future dividend stream and an estimate of the terminal value of these
investments, which are subject to change.

Provisions
Provisions are based on best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, that is,
the amount that the Group would rationally pay to settle the obligation at the reporting date or to transfer it to a third party.

Contingencies

The Group has disclosed its contingent liabilities for the pending litigations and claims against the Group based on its judgment
and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome. The actual outcome of these litigations and claims can
have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the reporting date. However, based on the best judgment
of the Group and its legal advisors, the likely outcome of these litigations and claims is remote and there is no need to
recognize any liability at reporting date.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set-out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Change in accounting policies

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ commencing July 01, 2019 which is effective from accounting period beginning on or after
January 01, 2019:
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4.1.1 IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

Effective January 01, 2019, the Group has adopted IFRS 16, “Leases” which replaces existing guidance on accounting for leases,
including IAS 17 “Leases”, IFRIC 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”, SIC-15 “Operating Leases - Incentive”
and SIC-27 “Evaluating the substance of transactions involving the legal form of a Lease”. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance
sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right-of use of the underlying
asset and a lease liability representing its obligations to make lease payments. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current
standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.

The Group adopted IFRS 16 using modified retrospective approach with the date of initial application of July 01, 2019. Under this
method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognised at the date of
initial application. Accordingly the information presented for prior year has not been restated. The accounting polices relating to the
Group’s right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are as follows:

Lease liabilities and right-of-use assets

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

From July 1, 2019, leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities at the date at which the leased assets
are available for use by the Group.

The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option, payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option, less
any lease incentives receivable. The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise these options.

The lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. They are remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments or an index or rate, change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether
it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
respective right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss if the carrying amount of that right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liabilities adjusted for any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-
use assets are amortised on a straight-line method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits. The carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the corresponding lease liability.

The impact of adoption of IFRS 16 on the consolidated statement of financial position during the year is summarized below:

(Rupees '000)

Assets

Right of use assets 2,618
Liabilities

Right of use liabilities 2,618
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The right of use assets were recognised on the amount of total minimum lease payments and right of use liabilities were recognised
based on the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application. The Group did not have any sub lease at the date of initial application.

The impact of adoption of IFRS 16 on the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year is summarized below:

(Rupees '000)

Decrease in rent expense (260)
Increase in depreciation expense 65
Increase in finance costs 383

Right of use liabilities as at July 01, 2019 can be reconciled to the operating lease commitments as of June 30, 2020 as follows:

(Rupees '000)

Operating lease commitments as of June 30, 2019 31,392

Effect of discounting 2,788

Operating lease commitments as of July 01, 2019 28,604

Incremental borrowing rate as at July 01, 2019 14.63%
4.2 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, respectively.

Current
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after taking into
account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is
based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the enacted or
substantively enacted rates of taxation. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the portion of income expected to be subject
to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release — 27 of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan.

The Group recognises a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable future will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the consolidated statement of profit or loss is recognized outside the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in consolidated other
comprehensive income or directly in consolidated equity.

4.3 Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings are classified as financial liabilities at ‘amortized cost'. On initial recognition, these are measured at cost,
being fair value at the date the liability is incurred, less attributable transactions costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are
measured at amortised cost with any difference between cost and value at maturity recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss over the period of borrowings on effective profit rate.
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4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.71

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at amortized cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in
the future for goods and services received.

Contingencies

A contingencies are disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group; or the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as
a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are measured at the present value of expected expenditure, discounted
at a pre-tax rate reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risk specific to the obligation. However,
provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

Property, plant and equipment

Owned

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, except freehold land which is stated at cost. Cost of
operating fixed assets comprises historical cost, borrowing cost and other expenditure pertaining to the acquisition, construction,
erection and installation of these assets.

Residual value and the useful life of assets are reviewed at each financial year end and if expectations differ from previous estimates
the change is accounted for as change in accounting estimate in accordance with IAS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss using the reducing balance method except for plant and
machinery on which depreciation is charged on production hours basis and leasehold land on which depreciation is charged on
straight line basis so as to write off the cost over the expected useful life of assets at rates, which are disclosed in notes to the
consolidated financial statements. Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which
the asset is available for use, while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed off.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Capital work in progress
Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure on item of property, plant and equipment which are in the course of construction,
erection or installation.
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4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

4.12

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred
during installation and construction period are carried under capital work in progress. Transfers are made to respective property,
plant and equipment category as and when assets are available for use.

Stores, spares and loose tools

These are stated at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined by using the weighted average method. Items in transit
are valued at cost comprising invoice value, plus other charges paid thereon. Provision is also made for slow moving and obsolete
items.

Stock in trade

These are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost is determined as follows:

Raw and packing materials At weighted average cost

Work in process At weighted average manufacturing cost

Finished goods At weighted average manufacturing cost

[tems in transit Cost comprising invoice values plus other charges incurred
thereon.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and
selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and cash at bank which are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.

Loans, advances, prepayments and trade deposits

These are initially recognized at cost, which is the fair value of consideration given. The Group assesses at each reporting date
whether there is any indication that assets excluding inventory may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of
such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying value exceed
recoverable amount, assets are written down to the recoverable amount and the difference is charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Group's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is greater of its value in use and its fair value less
cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets or cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidation statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on pro rata basis. Impairment losses
recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used in determining the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset's carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation and amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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4.15

4.16

417

418

Employees’ benefits

Defined contribution plan
The Group operates a funded employees’ provident fund scheme for its permanent eligible employees. Equal monthly contributions
at the rate of 8.33 percent of gross pay are made both by the Group and employees to the Fund.

Compensated absences
Compensated absences are accounted for employees of the Group on un-availed balance of leave in the period in which the
absences are earned.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets "are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss whenever incurred. Finance cost is accounted for on accrual basis.

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income is the change in equity resulting from transactions and other events, other than changes resulting from
transactions with shareholders in their capacity as shareholders. Total comprehensive income comprises all components of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income comprises items of income and expense, including
reclassification adjustments, that are not recognized in the consolidated profit or loss as required or permitted by approved
accounting standards.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency of the Group using exchange rate prevailing at the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency at exchange rate
prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured at fair value
are translated to the functional currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date the fair value is determined. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are measured at historical cost are translated to functional currency at exchange rate
prevailing at the date of initial recognition. Any gain or loss arising on translation of foreign currency transactions and balances is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Dividends

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which dividends are approved by the
Group’s shareholders.

Intangible assets

Gooawill
Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition (fair value of consideration paid) and the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired. Goodwill is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Software

Software is stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identified impairment loss. An intangible asset is recognized if it is
probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and that the cost of such asset can
also be measured reliably.
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4.20

4.21

Software is amortized using straight line method at the rates given in notes to the consolidated financial statements. Amortization is
charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss from the month in which the asset is available for use. Amortization on additions
is charged on pro-rata basis from the month in which asset is put into use, while for disposals, amortization is charged up to the
month of disposal.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible asset is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All expenditures are charged to income as and when incurred. Gain or loss arising on disposal and
retirement of intangible asset is determined as a difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the asset is
recognized as income or expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised at amounts that reflect the consideration that the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and
is recognised on the following basis:

- Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when or as performance obligations are satisfied by transferring control (i.e. at the
time of transfer of physical possession) of a promised good or service to a customer, and control either transfers over time or
at a point in time. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates
and government levies;

Export sales are recognised as revenue when invoiced with the transfer of control of goods, which coincides either with the date
of bill of lading or upon delivery to customer or its representative, based on terms of arrangement;

- Profit on bank deposits is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account principal outstanding and rates of profit
applicable thereon;

- Any profit on loans and advances is recognized on time proportion basis using effective rate of return; and

- Rental income is recognized on accrual basis when the amount is being receivable by the Group as per relevant assessment.

Operating segments

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment is a component of the Group
that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate
to the transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by
the chief executive officer to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for
which discrete financial information is available. The Group's format for segment reporting is based on its products and services.

Segment results that are reported to the chief executive officer include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Those income, expenses, assets, liabilities and other balances which can not be allocated to
a particular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated. Transactions among the business segments are recorded at
cost. Inter segment sales and purchases are eliminated from the total.

Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the consolidated profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in consolidated profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.
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4.22

4.23

4.24

Related party transactions and transfer pricing

Transactions and contracts with the related parties are based on the policy that all transactions between the Group and related
parties are carried out at commercial terms and conditions.

Share capital
Ordinary shares of the Holding Company are classified as share capital.
Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are stated initially at fair value of consideration to be received and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Allowance for impairment is made on the basis of lifetime expected credit
losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the trade debts and other receivables. Bad debts are
written off when considered irrecoverable.

4.25 Financial instruments

4.25.1 Initial Recognition

a)

b)

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given or received. These
are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost or cost as the case may be.

Classification of financial assets

The Group classifies its financial instruments at 'fair value through profit and loss', at fair value through other comprehensive income,
or at amortised cost. The Group determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of
instruments (other than equity instruments) is driven by the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and their
contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are recognised subsequently at amortised cost.
Financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at 'fair value through other comprehensive income'. By
default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at 'fair value through profit or loss'.

Classification of financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are measured
at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at fair value through profit or loss (such as instruments held for trading
or derivatives) or the Group has opted to measure them at fair value through profit or loss.

4.25.2 Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortised cost, and
in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are
expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Realized and unrealized gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Where management has
opted to recognise a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss, any changes associated with the Group’s own credit risk will
be recognized in other comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss.
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4.25.3

4.25.4

4.25.5

4.26

Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost.
Derecognition

The Group derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets expire or when it
transfers the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and rewards of ownership to another entity. On derecognition
of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying value and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in consolidated profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt
instrument classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to consolidated profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at fair value through other comprehensive income, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to the consolidated profit or
loss, but is transferred to the consolidated the statement of changes in equity.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are discharged or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Off setting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if the
Group has a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Government grants

Government grants are transfers of resources to an entity by a government entity in return for compliance with certain past or future
conditions related to the entity's operating activities - e.g. a government subsidy. The definition of "government" refers to
governments, government agencies and similar bodies, whether local, national or international.

The Group recognises government grants when there is reasonable assurance that grants will be received and the Group will be able
to comply with conditions associated with grants. Government grants are recognised at fair value, as deferred income, when there is
reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and the Group will be able to comply with the conditions associated with the
grants. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred, are recognised on a systematic basis in the income for the year in
which the related expenses are recognised. Grants that compensate for the cost of an asset are recognised in income on a
systematic basis over the expected useful life of the related asset.

A loan is initially recognised and subsequently measured in accordance with IFRS 9 - 'Financial Instruments'. IFRS 9 requires loans
at below-market rates to be initially measured at their fair value - e.g. the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted
at a market-related interest rate. The benefit that is the government grant is measured as the difference between the fair value of the
loan on initial recognition and the amount received, which is accounted for according to the nature of the grant.

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 5.1 5,357,365 4,784,927
Capital work in progress - at cost 5.2 75,155 81,045
5,432,520 4,865,972
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5.1 Operating fixed assets
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Owned assets
Freehold land | Leasehold land Building nr:laacnh‘i::rdv Furnace F"r?ii;;'l::eand qui;:am Computers Vehicles Total
R upees '000
Cost

- Balance as at July 01, 2018 196,857 25,826 303,981 2,738,060 347,659 29,906 4,351 10,458 78,285 3,735,383

< Additions during the year 7,745 639 701 22,067 32,510 4,443 1,801 269 51,156 121,331
Transfer under Scheme 37,793 - 132,949 1,523,789 - 6,930 2,000 1,877 27,256 1,732,594
Transfers / adjustment - - 818 186,942 3,404 - - - - 191,164
Disposals during the year (14,028) - - (150) - - - (15,951) (30,129)
Balance as at June 30, 2019 228,367 26,465 438,449 4,470,708 383,573 41,279 8,152 12,604 140,746 5,750,343
Balance as at July 01, 2019 228,367 26,465 438,449 4,470,708 383,573 41,279 8,152 12,604 140,746 5,750,343
Additions during the year 31,000 - 7,263 736,404 18,629 3,562 2,498 661 50 800,067
Reclassified under IFRS 16 - (26,465) - - - - - - - (26,465)
Transfers / adjustments (118,770) 118,770 - - - - - - - -
Disposals during the year - - - (3,061) - - - - (7,747) (10,808)
Balance as at June 30, 2020 140,597 118,770 445,712 5,204,051 402,202 44,841 10,650 13,265 133,049 6,513,137

Depreciation

Balance as at July 01, 2018 - 3,394 122,730 293,040 86,747 13,171 1,584 6,767 34,057 561,490
Charge for the year - 530 28,742 107,845 34,190 2,375 493 1,406 17,620 193,201
Depreciation on transfer - - 27,922 180,659 - 1,834 287 1,007 9,255 220,964
Depreciation on disposals - - - (20) - - - - (10,219) (10,239)
Balance as at June 30, 2019 - 3,924 179,394 581,524 120,937 17,380 2,364 9,180 50,713 965,416
Balance as at July 01, 2019 - 3,924 179,394 581,524 120,937 17,380 2,364 9,180 50,713 965,416
Charge for the year - - 26,399 127,587 23,550 2,625 767 1,128 16,866 198,922
Reclassified under IFRS 16 - (3,924) - - - - - - (3,924)
Depreciation on disposals - - - (203) - - - (4,439) (4,642)
Balance as at June 30, 2020 - - 205,793 708,908 144,487 20,005 3,131 10,308 63,140 1,155,772
Rate of depreciation
WDV as at June 30, 2019 228,367 22,541 259,055 3,889,184 262,636 23,899 5,788 3,424 90,033 4,784,927

WDV as at June 30, 2020 140,597 118,770 239,919 4,495,143 257,715 24,836 7,519 2,957 69,909 5,357,365
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5.1.1 Particulars of operating fixed assets disposed of during the year having net book value of Rupees five hundred thousand or more are as follows:

Description Cost Accumyla.ted Net Book Sale price Gain / (Loss) IV_Iode of Particulars of purchaser
Depreciation Value disposal
(Rupees '000)

Vehicles

Toyota Camry 3,700 (3,148) 552 1,300 748  Negotiation Mr. Muhammad Rizwan

Honda Civic 2,714 (825) 1,889 3,225 1,336  Negotiation Mr. Shafig Awan

Suzuki Cultus 1,280 (421) 859 452 (407)  Negotiation Mr. Khizer Tahir - (Ex-employee)

Plant & Machinery

Liquid Portable Cylinders 865 - 865 3,400 2,535  Negotiation Government General Hospital Faisalabad
Liquid Gas Tank 1,928 (165) 1,763 5,719 3,956  Negotiation Tehseen Oxygen

Cylinder Compressed 268 (38) 230 410 180  Negotiation 0il and Gas Development Company Limited

5.1.2 Particulars of immovable property in the name of the Group are as follows:
| Location | Usage of immovable property | Total Area | Covered Area
In sq. ft

1) 52 - Km, Phool Nagar, District Kasur Manufacturing facility (Gases) 113 Kanal 8 marla and 90 feet 67,031

2) Mouza Parna, Phool Nagar, Tehsil Pattoki, District Kasur Industrial land 191 Kanal and 19 marla -

3) Plot No. 09 to 24, Zone -B, Hattar Open plot 134 Kanal (16.75 Acre) -

4) Sarai Kharbuza, Tarnol, District Islamabad Open plot 7 Kanal -

5.1.3 Leasehold rights land located at Hattar under KPEZDMC is still under provisional allotment therefore at this point of time, this has been carried as leasehold land.

5.1.4 As at June 30, 2020, plant and machinery includes vacuum insulated evaporator tanks installed at certain customers' sites for supply of gases products. These assets are secured against
deposits as disclosed in note 21. Cost and net book values of such Vacuum insulated evaporator tanks are as follows:

2020 2019 2020 2019
(Rupees '000) (Rupees '000)
Cost Net Book Value
Vacuum insulated evaporator tanks 162,395 162,395 132,505 135,091




2020 2019

Note (Rupees '000)
5.1.5  Depreciation for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 173,778 168,508
Administrative expenses 25,144 24,693
198,922 193,201
5.2 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS - AT COST
Civil works 5.2.1 58,929 58,929
Plant and machinery 5.2.2 3,618 22,116
Advances to suppliers 12,608 -
75,155 81,045
5.21  Civil works
Opening balance 58,929 27,538
Transfer upon acquisition GGGL - 30,427
Additions during the year - 1,782
Capitalized during the year - (818)
Closing balance 58,929 58,929
5.2.2  Plant and machinery
Opening balance 22,116 3,618
Additions during the year 702,337 208,844
Capitalized during the year 5.2.3 (720,835) (190,346)
Closing balance 3,618 22,116

5.2.3  Capitalisation includes direct expenses relating to Plant amounting to Rupees 178.592 million including borrowing costs amounting to Rupees 6.390
million (2019: Rupees Nil).

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)
6  RIGHT OF USE ASSETS
Opening 26,465
Reclassified from operating fixed assets under IFRS 16 2,618
Recognised during the year 29,083
Amortisation (3,924)
Balance transferred from operating fixed assets 6.1 (598)
Amortised during the year (4,522)
Closing 24,561

6.1 Amortisation charge for the year on right of use assets has been calculated by using straight line method over the lease term i.e. 50 years and allocated to
administrative expenses. Right of use over leasehold land which is located at 53 - A, Industrial Zone Port Qasim, Karachi with an area of 40 Kanal for which
covered area is 17,045 sq. ft.

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)
7  INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software 71 8,637 11,599
Goodwill 1.2 348,694 348,694
357,331 360,293
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1.2

121

122

8.1

2020 2019

Note (Rupees '000)
Software
Cost
Opening balance 14,808 14,808
Additions during the year - at cost - -
Closing balance 14,808 14,808
Amortisation
Opening balance 3,209 247
Amortisation charged during the year 7141 2,962 2,962
Closing balance 6,171 3,209
Net book value 8,637 11,599

Software has been amortised at the rate of 20% (2019: 20%) of costs and allocated to administrative expenses.

2020 2019
(Rupees '000)
Goodwill
Opening balance 348,694 70
Transfer upon acquisition of GGGL - 19,794
Goodwill originated - 328,830
348,694 348,694
Less: Impairment - -
348,694 348,694

Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition (fair value of consideration paid) and the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired at the time of merger of Ghani Southern Gases (Private) Limited, Libaas Textile Limited and Ghani Global Glass Limited with and into the Holding
Company.

At each reporting date, an assessment is made as to whether there is any indication that goodwill may be impaired. These tests require the use of
estimates to calculate recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of goodwill attributable to cash-generating units is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use financial budgets and plans covering five-year periods unless a longer period can be justified. Key assumptions used
in the financial budgets and plans are revenue growth and margins. Cash flows beyond these periods are extrapolated using rates of growth and
profitability. The management of the Company has used applicable discount rates and these discount rates are pre-tax and reflect the specific risks relating
to the relevant cash-generating unit.

2020 2019
(Rupees '000)

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Considered good:

Security deposits for utilities 65,298 63,885
Security deposits for rented premises 3,006 2,973
Deposits against ljarah facilities 586 586
Central Depository Company of Pakistan (CDC) 50 50

68,940 67,494

These have been deposited against utilities, rented premises, ljarah facilities and others are refundable on completion or termination of contracts in
accordance with terms of contract. Due to uncertainties regarding dates of refund of these deposits, these have been carried at cost.

2020 2019
(Rupees '000)

STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 36,749 39,317
Spare parts 168,763 163,794
Loose tools 758 683

206,270 203,794
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Note (Rupees '000)
10 STOCK IN TRADE
Raw material 79,367 42,713
Work in progress 4,932 8,116
Finished goods 10.1 247,428 257,062
331,727 307,891
10.1  This includes finished goods in transit in the transportation vehicles amounting to Rupees 4.126 million (2019: Rupees 4.079 million).
2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)
11 TRADE DEBTS
Considered good
Unsecured 736,995 788,680
Considered doubtful 20,924 11,113
757,919 799,793
Allowance for expected credit loss 1.1 (20,924) (11,113)
736,995 788,680
11.1  Allowance for expected credit loss
As at July 01 11,113 2,841
Charge for the year 9,811 8,272
As at June 30 20,924 11,113
11.2 Trade debts amounting to Rupees 151.750 million were due (either past due or overdue) but not impaired as allowance for expected credit loss. These
balances relate to various customers, primarily government organizations, for whom there is no recent history of default. The aging analysis of these trade
debts is as follows:
2020
(Rupees '000)
Upto 1 month 42,510
31 to 60 days 12,871
61 to 90 days 11,925
91 to 180 days 30,615
181 to 365 days 27,856
Above 365 days 25,973
151,750
2020 2019
(Rupees '000)
12  LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured and considered good:
Advances to:
- Employees against expenses 3,834 4,775
- Employees against salary 6,299 25
- Suppliers and contractors 97,234 300,740
- Due from related party 480 480
- Advance against imports 3,811 81,915
- Advances to collector of customs 5,398 10,348
117,056 398,283
Allowance for impairment (1,485) (1,485)
115,571 396,798

2020 2019
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12.2

13

14

14.1

Due from related parties

Maximum amount

Gross due | Past due .. Reversal . Net outstanding at
Provision of Written off .
Name of related party amount amount L amount | any month during
provision
the year
(Rupees '000)
2020
Ghani Engineering (Private) Limited 480 - - - 480 480
Total 480 - - - 480 480
2019
Ghani Engineering (Private) Limited 480 - - 480 480
Total 480 - - 480 480
Age analysis of amount due from related parties
Amount not Amount past due Above 365 Total gross
Name of related party pastdue | 1-30 days | 31-60 days |61-90 days|91-365 days :a(:ls amount due
(Rupees '000)
2020
Ghani Engineering (Private) Limited - - - 480 480
Total - - - 480 480
2019
Ghani Engineering (Private) Limited 480 - - - 480
Total 480 - - - 480
2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)
DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good:
Trade deposits 67,030 61,283
Short term prepayments 2,375 2,559
Bank guarantee margin 10,771 4,364
Bank profit receivables 143 1,737
Workers' profit participation fund 4,426 -
84,745 69,943
ADVANCE INCOME TAX
Advance income tax 141 466,799 558,364
Opening balance 558,364 69,708
Transfer under the scheme - 379,123
Income tax paid during the year 165,550 118,866
723,914 567,697
Refund of income tax received (237,869) (5,855)
Adjusted against income tax payable (19,246) (3,478)
Closing balance 466,799 558,364
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2020 2019

Note (Rupees '000)
15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 549 533
Balances with banks in:
Current accounts 60,695 31,279
Deposit accounts 15.2 90,938 138,505
151,633 169,784
152,182 170,317

15.1 The Group have banking relationship with islamic windows of conventional banking system as well as shariah compliant banks only.

15.2 The rate of return on deposit accounts ranges from 1% to 7.06% (2019: 1.00% to 10.49%) per annum.

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)
16 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL
122,956,711 (2019: 122,956,711) Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully paid in cash
1,229,567 1,229,567
13,000 (2019: 13,000) Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued for consideration other
than cash under scheme of arrangement for amalgamation
16.1 130 130
14,424,253 (2019: 14,424,253) Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued for
consideration other than cash under Scheme of compromises, arrangement and
reconstruction 16.2 144,243 144,243
15,911,860 (2019: 15,911,860) Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued as fully paid
bonus shares 159,119 159,119
1,533,059 1,533,059

16.1 The process for amalgamation of Ghani Southern Gases (Private) Limited with and into the Holding Company as on May 15, 2012 resulted in issuance of
shares for consideration other than cash.

16.2 The process for amalgamation of Scheme of compromises, arrangement and reconstruction among the shareholders of Ghani Gases Limited, Ghani Global
Glass Limited and Ghani Chemical Industries Limited as sanctioned by Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore on February 06, 2019 resulted in issuance of
14,424,253 shares to the sponsoring shareholders of the Ghani Global Glass Limited for consideration other than cash.

16.3 Movement to the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Holding Company is as follows:

2020 2019 2020 2019
(No. of Shares) (Rupees '000)
153,305,824 132,268,163  Opening balance 1,533,059 1,322,682
- 6,613,408 Bonus shares issued - 66,134

- 14,424,253  Shares issued pursuance to Scheme of Compromises,
Arrangement and Reconstruction
- 144,243

153,305,824 153,305,824  Closing balance 1,533,059 1,533,059

17  CAPITAL RESERVE - SHARE PREMIUM

This includes balance amount of share premium received by the Holding Company on 2,500,000 ordinary shares at the rate of Rupees 5 per share, share
premium on 7,000,000 ordinary shares issued at Rupees 2.50 each, share premium on 43,019,834 ordinary shares at the rate of Rupees 10 each and
share premium of Rupees 128.073 million on issue of 14,424,253 shares to the sponsors of Ghani Global Glass Limited under the scheme.

Share premium may be utilized by the Holding Company only for the purpose specified in Section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017. During the year, the
Holding Company has utilised share premium amounting to Rupees Nil (2019: Rupees 66.134 million) with the provisions of Section 81 of the Companies
Act, 2017.
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18.1

19

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

2020 2019

(Rupees '000)

LOANS FROM SPONSORS

Unsecured loan

Opening balance 1,013,351 761,961
Transfer under the Scheme - 231,450
Loan received during the year 98,800 306,620
Loan repaid during the year (68,010) (286,680)
Closing balance 1,044,141 1,013,351

The loan obtained from sponsors of the Group to meet the liquidity requirements of the Group, which is unsecured and interest free. There is neither fixed
tenure of loan nor there is any schedule for repayment of loan. The repayment is at the discretion of the Group. In line with Technical Release - 32 (TR 32 -
Accounting Directors' Loan) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), these loans are shown as part of equity.

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)
LONG TERM FINANCING
From Banking Companies - secured:
Diminishing Musharakah 19.2 4,098 7,085
Diminishing Musharakah 19.3 6,727 20,912
Diminishing Musharakah 19.4 42,289 64,509
Diminishing Musharakah 19.5 436,338 129,450
Diminishing Musharakah 19.6 11,409 768
Diminishing Musharakah 19.7 153,600 192,000
Diminishing Musharakah 19.8 60,631 86,992
Islamic Refinance Facility 19.9 45,698 -
Syndicate Financing Facility 19.10 149,164 223,746
From Islamic Financial Institution - secured
Diminishing Musharakah 19.11 34,723 53,732
From Sponsoring Directors - Unsecured 19.12 52,000
996,677 779,194
Current portion taken as current liability 28 (150,893) (305,684)
845,784 473,510
Balance at beginning of year 779,194 59,470
Availed/adjustment during the year 417,853 550,211
Transfer upon acquisition of GGGL - 376,241
1,197,047 985,922
Repayment/adjustment during the year (200,370) (206,728)
Balance at the end of year 996,677 779,194

This represents diminishing musharakah facility having credit limit of Rupees 10 million (2019: Rupees 10 million) availed from banking company for
purchase of vehicles. The term of the agreement is 3 years. The balance is repayable in 36 installments. It carries profit rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 100
BPS (2019: 6 months KIBOR plus 100 BPS). It is secured against ownership of Diminishing Musharakah assets in favor of the banking company.

This represents diminishing musharakah facility having credit limit of Rupees 50 million (2019: Rupees 50 million) availed from banking company for
purchase of machinery and equipments for a period of 3 years. The balance is repayable in 36 equal monthly installments. It carries profit rate of 6 months
KIBOR plus 100 BPS (2019: 6 months KIBOR plus 100 BPS). The facility is secured against ownership of Diminishing Musharakah assets in favor of the
banking company, customer share of at least 10% and personal guarantee of three sponsoring directors of the Group.

This represents diminishing musharakah facility having credit limit of Rupees 90 million (2019: Rupees 90 million) availed from banking company to
finance machinery and equipments for a period of 3 years. The balance is repayable in 36 equal monthly installments. It carries profit rate of 1 year KIBOR
plus 80 BPS (1 year KIBOR plus 80 BPS). The facility is secured against first ranking pari passu charge on fixed assets and personal guarantee of three
sponsoring directors of the Group. As per regulatory relief provided by the SBP, the current portion has been deferred for the period of one year by the bank
because of pandemic Covid-19.
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19.6

19.7

19.8

19.9

19.10

19.11

19.12

This represents diminishing musharakah facility having credit limit of Rupees 450 million (2019: Rupees 450 million) availed from banking company to
finance machinery and equipments for a period of 5 years including 1 year grace period. The balance is repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments. It
carries profit rate of 3 month KIBOR plus 100 BPS (2019: 3 month KIBOR plus 100 BPS). The facility is secured against ranking charge with 25% margin
aggregating Rupees 600 million over all plant and machinery which will be upgraded to first pari passu charge within 120 days from the date of first
drawdown of the facility for plant and machinery. As per regulatory relief provided by the SBP, the current portion has been deferred for the period of one
year by the bank because of pandemic Covid-19.

This represents diminishing musharakah facility having credit limit of Rupees 16.988 million (2019: Rupees 17.874 million) availed from banking company
for purchase of vehicles. The term of the agreement is 3 to 5 years. The balance is repayable in monthly / quarterly equal installments in arrears. It carries
profit rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 1.75% Per annum (2019: 6 months KIBOR plus 1.75%) floor 8% and Cap 18% (2019: floor 8% and Cap 18%). It is
secured against 10% security deposit and post dated cheques / debit authority for entire tenure.

This represents diminishing musharakah facility having credit limit of Rupees 172.8 million (2019: Rupees 192 million) availed from banking company for
import of machinery. The term of the agreement is 3 years. The balance is repayable in quarterly installments. It carries profit rate of 3 months KIBOR plus
1.95% Per annum (2019: 6 months KIBOR plus 1.95%) with floor 8% and Cap 18% (2019: floor 8% and Cap 18%). It is secured agaist exclusive charge
over fixed assets (machinery) amounting to Rupees 240 million. As per regulatory relief provided by the SBP, the current portion has been deferred for the
period of one year by the bank because of pandemic Covid-19.

This represents diminishing musharakah facility having credit limit of Rupees 94.90 million (2019: Rupees 94.90 million) availed from banking company for
import of machinery. The term of the agreement is 3 years. The balance is repayable in monthly installments. It carries profit rate of 1 month KIBOR plus
1.5% Per annum (2019: 1 months KIBOR plus 1.5%). It is secured agaist specific charge on machinery amounting to Rupees 125 million with 20 % net off
value Rupees 100 million registered with SECP, cross corporate guarantee of Ghani Global Holding Limited. Due to Covid 19 global outbreak, bank deferred
the loan installments of different tranches for the period of one year as a relief to the Group.

2020 2019
(Rupees '000)

Islamic refinance facility
Facility obtained during the year 49,604
Less: Deferred income (3,906)

45,698

This represents diminishing musharakah facility having credit limits of Rupees 86 million (2019: Rupees Nil) under islamic refinance scheme for the
payment of salaries and wages to workers and employees of the Group to dampen the effect of Covid-19 for a period of 2.5 years including 06 months
grace period. The repayment will be made in 8 equal quarterly installments after grace period and will start from January 2021. It carries SBP rate plus 3%
(2019: Nil). The facility is secured against first Joint Pari Passu Charge of Rupees 300 million over plant and machinery and personal guarantee of three
sponsoring directors of the Group.

This facility was obtained to establish a tubing glass manufacturing plant having credit limit of Rupees 600 million (2019: Rupees 600 million), carrying
profit at the rate of 3 month KIBOR plus 1.95% per annum (2019: 3 month KIBOR plus 1.95% per annum) repayable quarterly and is secured against first
pari passu charge on all present and future fixed assets for Rupees 800 million and corporate guarantee of the Holding Company with grace period for
principal repayment of 24 months from the date of first drawdown. The term of the agreement is six (6) years including grace period. As per regulatory
relief provided by the SBP, the current portion has been deferred for the period of one year by the bank because of pandemic Covid-19.

This Islamic finance facility carries profit ranging from 6 months KIBOR plus 100 BPS to 125 BPS (2019: 6 months KIBOR plus 100 BPS to 125 BPS). This
Islamic finance facility having credit limit of Rupees 63 million (2019: Rupees 63 million) is secured against ownership of Diminishing Musharakah assets
in favor of financial institution. This finance facility is repayable in monthly installments.

These unsecured loans were provided by sponsoring directors to meet capital expenditure requirements of the Group and is repayable after 5 years at the
discretion of lender. Profit rates on these loans ranges from 1-month KIBOR to 3-months KIBOR (2019: Nil). Profit will be paid on monthly basis.
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20

20.1

20.2

21

211

21.2

22

221

23

2020 2019

Note (Rupees '000)

REDEEMABLE CAPITAL - SUKUK
Long Term Certificates (Sukuk) 201 650,000 812,500
Current portion taken as current liability 28 (54,166) (216,667)

595,834 595,833
Balance at the beginning of the year 812,500 -
Transfer under the Scheme - 1,029,167

812,500 1,029,167
Repayment during the year (162,500) (216,667)
Balance at the end of the year 650,000 812,500

The Group had issued Rated, Privately Placed and Secured Long Term Islamic Certificates (Sukuk) as instrument of redeemable capital under Section 120
of the Companies Ordinance 1984 (Now the Companies Act, 2017) amounting to Rupees 1,300 million divided into 13,000 certificates of Rupees 100,000
each for a period of 6 years under an agreement dated December 22, 2016 for swapping of financing facilities and to meet business requirements. The
said certificates are redeemable in 24 consecutive quarterly installments commenced from February 03, 2017 and ending on February 03, 2023. Rental is
payable on quarterly basis along with redemption of certificates. It carries profit rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 100 BPS (2019: 3 months KIBOR plus 100
BPS). These certificates are secured against first pari passu charge over present and future fixed assets of the Group to the extent of Rupees 1,625 million.
As per regulatory relief provided by the SBP, the current portion has been deferred for the period of one year by the bank because of pandemic Covid-19.

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)

LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS
Security deposits 21.2 42,972 34,451
Bifurcation of security deposits is as under:
Security deposit for services to be provided and utilizable for group
business - -
Security deposit utilized for the purpose of the business in accordance
with written agreements 42,972 34,451
Amount kept in separate bank account - -

42,972 34,451

These represent amounts received from the customers on installation of certain equipment and may be used in ordinary course of the Group business
under provisions of Section 217 of the Companies Act, 2017.

2020 2019
(Rupees '000)
LONG TERM PAYABLE
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 22,638 -
Current portion of long term payable (7,939) -

14,699 -

This represents payable against Gas Infrastructure Development Cess pursuant to the verdict of Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan announced on
August 13, 2020. The amount is payable in 24 installments commencing from August 2020.

2020 2019
(Rupees '000)

RIGHT OF USE LIABILITIES

Recognised during the year 2,618 -
Due to increase in expense 123 -
2,141 -
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23.1 The Group has lease arrangements for right of use land over 50 years and annual rent is being paid over such term. Impact of discounting has been
recognised during the year as per policy disclosed in note 4.1.1. Due to impact of discounting at present value, the effect of current portion will increase the

liability therefore current portion and maturity analysis has not been presented.

24  DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Deferred income
Deferred taxation

24.1 Deferred income

Government grant
Amortized during the year

Current portion of deferred income

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)

241 2,188 -
24.2 206,375 302,181

208,563 302,181

3,906
(74)

3,832
(1,644)

2,188

24.1.1 Due to the pandemic Covid-19, State Bank of Pakistan took various measures to support the economy and introduced a refinance scheme for payment of
salaries and wages at subsidised rate of borrowing. The Group has obtained said borrowing from a islamic bank at subsidised 3% which is repayable from
January 2021 in 8 quarterly installments. In accordance with the terms of the grant, the Group is prohibited to lay-off the employees at least for a period of

three months from the date of grant.

24.2 DEFERRED TAXATION

Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated tax depreciation

Deductible temporary differences
Provision for expected credit loss
Unused tax losses

Net taxable temporary differences

Unused tax credits

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors

Contract liabilities - advance from customers
Accrued liabilities

Payable to Employees' Provident Fund
Workers' profit participation fund

Workers' Welfare Fund

Current portion of deferred income

Book overdraft

Withholding tax

26  ACCRUED PROFIT ON FINANCING
Long term financing

Redeemable capital - Sukuk
Short term borrowings
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2020 2019
(Rupees '000)

677,315 589,784
(5,955) (3,302)
(411,960) (261,577)
(417,915) (264,879)
259,400 324,905
(53,025) (22,724)
206,375 302,181
222,486 136,836
85,147 84,618
130,474 95,962
3,250 -
2,173
1,456
1,644 -
30,347 15,505
4,775 3,781
481,761 336,702
20,234 20,752
9,559 15,878
63,818 43,690
93,611 80,320




27

271

21.2

28

29

291

29.11

29.1.2

29.1.3

29.1.4

29.1.5

29.1.6

2020 2019

Note (Rupees '000)
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
From banking companies - secured:
From banking companies - secured 2741 1,774,751 1,683,471
Loan from director 27.2 11,400 -
1,786,151 1,683,471

These finances have been obtained by the Group from banking companies under profit arrangements and are secured against joint pari passu
hypothecation charge on the present and future current assets of the Group and personal guarantees of sponsor directors of the Group. These form part of
total credit funded facilities of Rupees 1,905 million (2019: Rupees 1,914.5 million). The rates of profit ranging from relevant KIBOR plus 0.80% to 2.25%
(2019: relevant KIBOR plus 0.80% to 2.25%) per annum.

This represents the Islamic finance facility under istisna arrangement obtained from the Director of the Group to meet the working capital requirements,
which is secured against the pledge of stocks. The average return on facility amount is 7.46% per annum (2019: Nil). The profit amount will be paid along
with principle amount.

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)
CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Long term financing 19 150,893 305,683
Redeemable capital - Sukuk 20 54,166 216,667
Long term payable 22 7,939 -
212,998 522,350

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

The Holding Company has provided corporate guarantee amounting to Rupees 744.900 million (2019: Rupees 650 million) to banks against financing
facilities on behalf of the Ghani Global Glass Limited.

Based on the legal opinion, due to the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction (the Scheme); the routing of transactions in order to
pass on the impact of sales tax from the Holding Company is in line with the Scheme sanctioned by the Honorable Court. Therefore, there will be no non-
compliance at this point of time, however, at any stage if there will be negative inference; then the same will be dealt accordingly.

During the year, the Group has filed Writ Petition No. 2343/2020 before Honorable Sindh High Court, Karachi against Federation of Pakistan owing to
dispute between K-Electric regarding origination Bill including amount of Rupees 35.858 million in lieu of Industrial Support Package (ISPA). As per order of
the Sindh High Court, Karachi on May 05, 2020; the Group has submitted post-dated cheque of the involved amount to the Court for further proceeding of
the matter. The management is of the view that the case will be decided in favor of the Group.

The Group has filed petition under Section 133 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 before Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore vide ITR No. 248570/2018
against the Order of the Commissioner Inland Revenue, Zone lll, challenging order passed by Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue Lahore Bench in
connection with the assessment for the year 2014 on July 20, 2018. The Appeal has been filed against the order of the Appellate Tribunal on account of
wrong treatment on account of import of calcium carbide and loan from directors. This case is being vigorously pursued by the Group.

Additional Commissioner (Audit) Inland Revenue in connection with the assessment under Section 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the year
2018 vide Order dated July 17, 2020 in connection with Show Cause Notice of March 03, 2020 adjusted advance income tax by disallowing tax credit of
Rupees 24,589,708 under Section 65-B and treating import of calcium carbide under final tax regime by Rupees 22,972,220. The Group has filed an
appeal before the appellate authority and the same is pending. The Group, as per advise of the legal counsel, is confident that the matter shall be decided in
favor of the Group.

Additional Commissioner (Audit) Inland Revenue in connection with the assessment under Section 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the year
2017 vide Order dated July 15, 2020 in connection with Show Cause Notice of April 15, 2020 adjusted advance income tax by disallowing tax credit of
Rupees 31,858,952 under Section 65-B and treating import of calcium carbide under final tax regime by Rupees 19,716,207 and resultantly generated
demand of Rupees 44,695,732. The Group has filed an appeal before the appellate authority and the same is pending. The Group, as per advise of the legal
counsel, is confident that the matter shall be decided in favor of the Group.
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29.1.7

29.1.8

29.1.9

Additional Commissioner (Audit) Inland Revenue in connection with the assessment under Section 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the year
2016 vide Order dated July 15, 2020 in connection with Show Cause Notice of April 15, 2020 adjusted advance income tax by disallowing tax credit of
Rupees 63,038,806 under Section 65-B and treating import of calcium carbide under final tax regime by Rupees 21,585,906 and resultantly generated
demand of Rupees 55,495,323. The Group has filed an appeal before the appellate authority and the same is pending. The Group, as per advise of the legal
counsel, is confident that the matter shall be decided in favor of the Group.

Additional Commissioner (Audit) Inland Revenue in connection with the assessment under Section 122 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the year
2015 vide Order dated July 15, 2020 in connection with Show Cause Notice of April 15, 2020 adjusted advance income tax by disallowing tax credit of
Rupees 12,522,520 under Section 65-B and treating import of calcium carbide under final tax regime by Rupees 24,770,279 and resultantly generated
demand of Rupees 52,692,524. The Group has filed an appeal before the appellate authority and the same is pending. The Group, as per advise of the legal
counsel, is confident that the matter shall be decided in favor of the Group.

The Group has filed a petition against Federation of Pakistan, before the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore vide W.P No. 50298/2019, challenging the
rejection of sales tax refund of Rupees 84,128,215 by the Sales Tax Department and Appellant Forum which was claimed by the Group in 2016. The case
is at argument stage and the management is of the view, as per advise of the legal counsel, that the case would be decided in favor of the Group.

29.1.10 The Group had filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeal) against the CIR for disallowance of input tax against utility bills for the year

2016 amounting to Rupees 22.22 million. The case was decided in favor of Group directing the department to revive the refund proceedings.

29.1.11 The Group has filed two separate constitutional petitions on February 15, 2009 before the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore on the ground that the

Holding Company was not required to pay any Advance Tax on electricity bills due to huge carried forward tax losses and available refunds. Honorable
Lahore High Court has granted stay orders upon furnishing bank guarantees in favor of LESCO amounting to Rupees 3.14 million (2019: Rupees 3.14
million). Consequence to implementation of the Scheme of Arrangement; the status of the case has been presented in the financial statements of Ghani
Chemical Industries Limited and these consolidated financial statements being presented under Section 228 of the Companies Act, 2017.

29.1.12 Bank guarantees amounting to Rupees 95.12 million (2019: Rupees 91.85 million) provided to various customers/institutions against gas connection to Sui

Northern Gas Pipelines Limited and supplies of products.

29.1.13 The un-availed funded and unfunded credit facilities from banks (other than loan from director) as at June 30, 2020 was Rupees 247.793 million (2019:

29.2

29.2.1

Rupees 1059.93 million). These limits include credit lines that are interchangeable and may be utilized for either funded facilities or unfunded facilities.

Commitments

Commitments in respect of letter of credit amounted to Rupees 181.48 million (2019: Rupees 230.73 million).

29.2.2 Commitments for construction of building as at reporting date amounted to Rupees 31.5 million (2019: Rupees 27 million).

30

2020 2019
(Rupees '000)

SALES - NET

Gross sales - local

Supplies 3,682,887 3,543,280
Services 33,119 -

3,716,006 3,543,280

Export 91,838 1,538

3,807,844 3,544,818

Less: Sales/service tax 491,500 470,092

Trade discounts 3,927
495,427 470,092
3,312,417 3,074,726
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31

31

31.2

32

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)
COST OF SALES
Raw material consumed 3141 258,425 158,801
Freight inward 2,282 1,853
Fuel and power 1,151,082 793,030
Utilities 3,493 3,174
Packing material consumed 57,805 54,743
Consumable stores 89,624 94,152
Salaries, wages and other benefits 31.2 205,985 196,652
Rent, rates and taxes 426 -
Communication 708 830
Repairs and maintenance 24,482 36,600
Traveling, vehicle running and conveyance 5,370 12,563
Insurance 7,992 9,111
Depreciation 5.1.5 173,778 168,508
Transportation - 21,632
Other overheads 54,987 64,665
Current manufacturing cost 2,036,439 1,616,314
Changes in work in process
Opening 8,116 2,999
Closing (4,932) (8,116)
3,184 (5,117)
Cost of goods manufactured 2,039,623 1,611,197
Changes in finished goods
Opening stock 257,062 479,806
Purchases 482,173 600,058
Closing stock (247,428) (257,062)
491,807 822,802
2,531,430 2,433,999
Raw material consumed
Opening balance 42,713 27,900
Purchases 295,078 173,614
Available for use 337,791 201,514
Closing balance (79,367) (42,713)
Material consumed 258,424 158,801
Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rupees 6.804 million (2019: Rupees 6.530 million) in respect of retirement benefits.
2020 2019
SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION Note (Rupees '000)
Salaries, wages and other benefits 321 55,312 64,072
Freight outward 16,351 8,736
Transportation charges 171,162 169,351
Traveling, boarding, lodging and conveyance 3,241 6,493
Rent, rates and taxes 10,359 15,710
Communication 1,109 1,348
Vehicle running and maintenance 5,551 4,082
Advertisement and business promotion - 500
Loading and unloading 1,158 1,315
Postage and courier 211 336
Repair and maintenance 2,006 12,236
Office expense 8,366 4,565
Commission against exports 1,116 -
Other expenses 12,073 2,625
288,015 291,369
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32.1  Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rupees 3.699 million (2019: Rupees 3.600 million) in respect of retirement benefits.

33  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Rent, rates and taxes

Electricity and other utilities
Traveling and conveyance

Vehicle running and maintenance
Donation and charity

Printing and stationery
Communication

Fee and subscription

Lease rentals

Advertisement

Insurance

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of right of use assets
Office expense

Repair and maintenance

Others

Note

33.1

5.1.5

71

2020
(Rupees '000)

2019

33.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits includes Rupees 7.029 million (2019: Rupees 6.620 million) in respect of retirement benefits.

34  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Legal and professional

Workers profit participation fund
Debit balances written off

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess
Exchange loss

Inadmissible sales tax

Allowance for expected credit loss
Auditors' remuneration

Workers welfare fund

341 Auditors' remuneration
Fee for:
- Statutory audit
- Audit of consolidated financial statements
-Special review
- Review of half yearly financial information
- Other certifications

35 OTHER INCOME

Profit on bank deposits

Reversal for expected credit loss

Credit balance written back

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets
Amortization of deferred income

Other income
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Note

34.1

99,161 117,821
10,998 9,943
3,852 4,683
4,245 5,920
3,085 3,514
9,108 2,051
2,095 4,169
1,661 2,546
8,393 9,351
- 993
416 1,295
2,657 3,478
25,144 24,693
2,962 2,962
598 -
1,252 1,011
1,957 10,507
15,050 2,544
192,634 207,481
2020 2019
(Rupees '000)
3,934 5178
2,172 -
10,398 -
22,638 -
142 1,128
83 3,873
9,812 8,546
2,447 2,225
1,455 -
53,081 20,950
1,892 1,800
200 150
- 60
305 140
50 75
2,447 2,225
2,541 4,244
- 1,438
14,683 3,287
8,353 3,876
5 -
1,200 8,517
26,782 21,362




36

37

371

38

38.1

39

2020 2019

Note (Rupees '000)
FINANCE COSTS
Finance costs on:
Long term financing 77,465 60,736
Redeemable capital - Sukuk 95,673 92,622
Short term borrowings 271,220 158,351
Workers' profit participation fund - 214
Right of use liabilities 383
Others
Bank charges and commission 5,906 1,811
456,647 313,734
TAXATION
Current taxation
For the year 374 32,950 19,315
Prior period 1,993
32,950 21,308
Deferred taxation (95,806) 19,347
(62,856) 40,655

Assessment up to tax year 2019 is finalized (deemed assessment) and the available tax losses of the Group is Rupees 2,555.22 million (2019: Rupees
2,041.22 million).

2020 2019
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Loss attributable to the owners of the Holding Company (Rupees "000") (138,969) (138,052)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year (Number) 153,305,824 153,305,824
Earnings per share (Rupees) (0.906) (0.901)

Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Holding Company does not have any convertible instruments in issue as at reporting date which
would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert is exercised.

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation (182,608) (171,445)
Adjustments to reconcile profit to non-cash charges and items
Depreciation 515 198,922 193,201
Amortization on intangible assets 71 2,962 2,962
Finance cost 36 456,647 313,734
Depreciation of right of use assets 598 -
Allowance for expected credit loss 9,811 7,108
Translation exchange loss 1,439 1,128
Debit balances written off 10,398 -
Credit balances written back (14,683) -
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 22,638 (3,287)
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets (8,353) (3,876)
680,379 510,970
Cash flows from operations before working capital changes carried down 497,771 339,525
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2020 2019
(Rupees '000)

Cash flows from operations before working capital changes brought forward 497,711 339,525
Cash flows from working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:

Stores, spares and loose tools (2,476) 52,949

Stock in trade (23,836) 202,814

Trade debts 44,231 (195,437

Loans and advances 141,059 (166,555

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (14,802) (12,705

Tax refunds due from government 7,126 25,513

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables 158,303 30,379

Net cash generated from / (used in) working capital changes 309,605 (63,042)
Cash generated from operating activities 807,376 276,483

40  CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATION

The aggregate amount charged in the accounts for remuneration, allowances including all benefits to the Chief Executive Officer, Directors and other
Executives of the Group are as follows:

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Chief Chief

Description Executive Directors Executives Executive Directors Executives

(Rupees '000) (Rupees '000)
Managerial remuneration 26,182 15,912 29,535 29,733 16,022 31,775
Allowances 1,670 1,015 1,968 1,728 923 1,658
Provident fund contribution 2,321 1,410 2,340 2,372 1,271 1,916

30,173 18,337 33,843 33,833 18,216 35,349

No. of persons 2 2 10 2 2 10

40.1 The Chief Executive and directors have been provided with free use of Group maintained cars in accordance with their entitlement. Certain executives have
also provided with the Group maintained cars as per their terms of employment.

40.2 No meeting fee was paid to directors for attending Board meetings during the year (2019: Nil).

41  TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of associated companies, directors, companies in which directors also hold directorship, key management personnel and staff
retirement benefit funds. The Group in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of related parties (with
whom the Group has transacted) along with relationship and transactions with related parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in
these consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

41.1 Name and nature of relationship
a)  Associates due to common directorship
Ghani Engineering (Private) Limited
b)  Sponsors
Mr. Masroor Ahmad Khan - Director of Holding Company

Mr. Atique Ahmad Khan - Chief Executive Officer / Director of Holding Company
Hafiz Farooq Ahmad - Director of Holding Company

Ghani Global Holdings Limited 106
and its Subsidiaries




c)

4.2

1.3
42

43
431

44

441

Others

Employees' Provident Fund Trusts
Transactions with related parties

. 2020 2019
Name Nature of Transaction (Rupees '000)
Associates
Payment made - 2,740
Key management personnel
Sponsors Equity
Loan received 98,800 306,620
Loan paid (68,010) (286,680)
Long term borrowings
Loan received - interest based 52,000 -
Short term borrowings
Loan received - interest based 11,400 -
Loan received 117,690 -
Loan paid (117,690) -
Others
Provident fund trust Contribution 34,996 33,513

Sales, purchases and other transactions with related parties are carried out on commercial terms and conditions.

PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Investments out of provident fund trusts have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules
formulated for the purpose.

RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Judgments and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognized and measured at fair
value in these consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 13, ‘Fair Value Measurements’ requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale securities) is
based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity - specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity securities.

As at reporting date, the Company has no item to report in these levels.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

This note represents information about the Group's exposure to each of the following financial risks, the Group's objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk, fair value of financial instruments and the Group's management of capital.

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk and profit rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The Board is also
responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies and provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies
covering specific areas such as currency risk, equity price risk, profit rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.
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The Group’s audit committee oversees risk management monitors compliance with risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of
risk management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Group. Audit committee is into oversight role by internal audit department. Internal audit
department undertakes reviews of risk management controls and procedures, results of which are reported to audit committee.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market profit rates or the market price due to change
in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the
market. The Group incurs financial liabilities to manage its market risk. All such activities are carried out with the approval of the Board. The Group is
exposed to profit rate risk, currency risk and market price risk.

(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign
currencies.

The Group is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the United States Dollar and Euro. As
on reporting date, no financial liabilities were subject to any currency risk. The following significant exchange rates were applied during the

year:
Average rate
June 30, June 30,
2020 2019
(Rupees)

PKR per
EURO 189.73 178.88
usD 168.75 134.19
Sensitivity analysis

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the Euro and USD with all other variables held
constant, the impact on profit after taxation for the year would have been Rupees 3.235 million higher / lower (2019: Rupees Nil higher / lower),
mainly as a result of exchange gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange denominated financial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to
foreign exchange movements has been calculated on a symmetric basis. In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of inherent currency risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

(ii) Profit rate risk
Profit rate risk represents the risk that fair values of future cash flows of financial instruments which will fluctuate because of change in market
profit rates. The Group has no significant long-term profit-bearing financial assets. The Group's profit rate risk arises from financial liabilities.
Borrowings obtained at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow profit rate risk. Borrowings obtained at fixed rate expose the Group to fair
value profit rate risk.

At the reporting date the profit rate profile of the Group’s profit bearing financial instruments was:

2020 2019
(Rupees '000)

Floating rate instruments

Financial assets

Bank balances 90,938 138,505
Financial liabilities

Long term financing 996,677 779,194

Redeemable capital - Sukuk 650,000 812,500

Short term borrowings 1,786,151 1,683,471

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in profit rate
at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the Group.
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The following analysis demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in profit rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of floating rate instruments outstanding at reporting dates were
outstanding for the whole year.

Changes in Effects on Profit
Interest Rate Before Tax
(Rupees "000")

Bank Balances - deposit accounts 2020 +1.50 1,364
-1.50 (1,364)

+1.50 2,078

2019 -1.50 (2,078)

Long term financing +2.00 (19,934)
2020 -2.00 19,934

+2.00 (15,584)

2019 -2.00 15,584

Redeemable capital - Sukuk 2020 +2.00 13,000
-2.00 (13,000)
+2.00 (16,250)

2019 -2.00 16,250

Short term borrowings 2020 +2.00 35,723
-2.00 (35,723)
+2.00 (33,669)

2019 -2.00 33,669

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and outstanding liabilities of the Group at the
year end.

(ii) Other price risk
Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Group does not have financial assets and liabilities whose fair value or future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.
Carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure.

Credit risk of the Group arises from deposits with banks, trade deposits, trade debts, long term deposits and other receivables. The management
assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set
based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the Board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. For banks and
financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a strong credit rating are accepted.

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Annual Report 2020 | 109



2020 2019

Note (Rupees '000)
Long term deposits 8 68,940 67,494
Trade debts 11 736,995 788,680
Deposits and other receivables 13 77,944 67,384
Bank balances 15 151,633 169,784
1,035,512 1,093,342

Concentration of credit risk
The Group identifies concentrations of credit risk by reference to type of counterparty. Maximum exposure to credit risk by type of counterparty is as
follows:
2020 2019
(Rupees '000)

Customers 736,995 788,680
Banking companies and financial institutions 151,633 169,784

Out of the total financial assets credit risk is concentrated in trade debts and deposits with banks as they constitute 85.82% (2019: 87.72%) of the total
financial assets. The Group's exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts other than Government parties is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The Group establishes an allowance for expected credit loss that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect
of trade debts except for Government parties. Age analysis of trade debts at reporting date was as follows:

2020 2019
(Rupees '000)

Neither past due nor impaired 460,263 429,132
3110 60 days 38,601 319,018
61 to 90 days 39,262 32,331
91 to 180 days 88,628 8,809
181 to 365 days 48,481 3,295
Above 365 days 82,684 7,208
Total exposure 757,919 799,793
Allowance for expected credit loss (20,924) (11,113)

736,995 788,680
Trade debts

Trade debts shall be essentially due from local customers against sale of medical and industrial gases and chemicals. Sales to the Group’s customers
shall be made on specific terms and conditions. Customer credit risk shall be managed by each business unit subject to the Group’s established
policy, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk management. Credit limits are being established for all customers based on internal
rating criteria. Credit quality of the customer is also being assessed based on an extensive credit rating. Outstanding customer receivables shall be
regularly monitored.

Trade debts of the Group are not exposed to significant credit risk as the Group trades with credit worthy customers. Trade debts except for
Government parties amounting to Rupees 606.018 million (2019: Rupees 47.776 million) are past due of which Rupees 20.924 million (2019: Rupees
11.113 million) have been impaired. Required allowance as determined by independent consultant in lieu of impairment loss against trade debts as per
IFRS 9 - 'Financial Instruments - Recognition and measurement' have been made in these consolidated financial statements.

Allowance for expected credit loss

The loss allowance for trade debts other than Government and exclusive of related parties as at reporting date was determined as follows:
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Expected Credit Exposure at Expected Credit

Aging Bucket Loss (ECL) Rate default Loss (ECL)
% (Rupees '000)

Ghani Global Glass Limited
0 to 30 days 0.00% 218,940 -
3110 60 days 0.05% 11,073 6
61 to 90 days 5.19% 4,847 252
91 to 180 days 7.73% 5,005 387
181 to 365 days 4.08% 1,776 317
Above 365 days 10.58% 8,639 914
Ghani Chemical Industries Limited
0 to 30 days 0.00% 198,662 -
31 to 60 days 4.06% 14,657 595
61 to 90 days 12.59% 22,490 2,831
91 to 180 days 17.50% 53,008 9,276
181 to 365 days 11.75% 12,849 1,510
Above 365 days 10.06% 48,072 4,836

606,018 20,924

The credit quality of loans and other receivables can be assessed with reference to their historical performance with no or negligible defaults in recent
history and no losses incurred. The credit quality of Group's bank balances can be assessed with reference to the external credit ratings follows:

. 2020 2019
Banks Rating Agency Short term Long term (Rupees '000)
MCB Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AAA 21 2,676
MCB Islamic Bank Limited PACRA A-1 A 39 38
National Bank of Pakistan VIS A-1+ AAA 749 1,572
United Bank Limited VIS A1+ AAA 104 3,239
Allied Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AAA 4,973 3,440
Faysal Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AA 4,150 6,659
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AA+ 8,180 8,109
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited PACRA Al A+ 1,197 3,022
Meezan Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AA+ 50,109 78,953
AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited VIS A-1 A+ 4,505 1,226
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA A1+ AA+ 35,282 20,982
The Bank of Khyber VIS A-1 A 87 137
Askari Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AA+ 3,797 6,119
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AA- 119 1,702
Habib Bank Limited VIS A1+ AAA 1,091 3,005
Bank Al-Habib Limited PACRA A+ AA+ 5,390 17,743
JS Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA- 744
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited VIS A-1+ AA 189 479
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited

PACRA A1+ AAA 28,816 8,075
The Bank of Punjab PACRA A-1+ AA 1,772 1612
Summit Bank Limited VIS A-3 BBB- 95 901
Silk Bank Limited VIS A-2 A- 224 95

151,633 169,784

Due to Group's long standing business relationships with these counter parties and after giving due consideration to their strong financial standing,
management does not expect non-performance by these counter parties on their obligations to the Holding Company. Accordingly the credit risk is
minimal.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or any other financial assets, or that such obligations will have to be settled in manners unfavorable to the Group.

(c

~

The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Holding Company's reputation.
Management believes the liquidity risk to be low.
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The table below analyzes the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

. Contractual cash Less than Between 1 and 5
Carrying Amount
flows 1 year years
(Rupees "000")

2020
Long term financing 996,677 996,677 150,893 845,784
Redeemable capital - Sukuk 650,000 650,000 54,166 595,834
Long term security deposits 42,972 42,972 - 42,972
Right of use liabilities 2,141 2,141 - 2,141
Trade and other payables 386,566 386,566 386,566 -
Accrued profit on financings 93,611 93,611 93,611
Short term borrowings 1,786,151 1,786,151 1,786,151
Unclaimed dividend 844 844 844 -

3,959,562 3,959,562 2,472,231 1,487,331
2019
Long term financing 779,194 779,194 305,684 473,510
Redeemable capital - Sukuk 812,500 812,500 216,667 595,833
Long term security deposits 34,451 34,451 - 34,451
Trade and other payables 248,303 248,303 248,303 -
Accrued profit on financings 80,320 80,320 80,320
Short term borrowings 1,683,471 1,683,471 1,683,471
Unclaimed dividend 844 844 844 -

3,639,083 3,639,083 2,535,289 1,103,794

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of profit rates effective as at reporting dates. The
rates of profit have been disclosed in respective notes to the consolidated financial statements.

44.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values. Fair value is
determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

2020 2019
Note (Rupees '000)
44.3 Financial instruments by categories

At amortized cost
Assets as per statement of financial position
Long term deposits 8 68,940 67,494
Trade debts 11 736,995 788,680
Trade deposits and other receivables 13 77,944 67,384
Cash and bank balances 15 152,182 170,317

1,036,061 1,093,875
Liabilities as per statement of financial position
Long term financing 19 996,677 779,194
Redeemable capital - Sukuk 20 650,000 812,500
Long term security deposits 21 42,972 34,451
Right of use liabilities 23 2,141 -
Trade and other payables 25 386,566 248,303
Accrued profit on financings 26 93,611 80,320
Short term borrowings 27 1,786,151 1,683,471
Unclaimed dividend 844 844

3,959,562 3,639,083

44.4 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide return for
shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders and to maintain healthier capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholders value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in the light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust dividend payments to the shareholders, return on capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
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45
451

45.2

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes from the previous period. The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is debt
divided by equity plus net debt. Debt represents long term financing including current portion obtained by the Group. Total capital employed includes ‘total
equity’ as shown in the statement of financial position plus total debt. The Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from last period, was to maintain
optimal capital structure in order to minimize cost of capital. The gearing ratio as at reporting date is as follows:

2020 2019
(Rupees '000)

Total debt 3,432,828 3,275,165
Equity 3,800,606 3,889,568
Total capital employed 7,233,434 7,164,733
Gearing ratio 47.46% 45.71%
SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's reportable segments are based on the following product lines:

Industrial and Medical Gases

This segment covers business with large-scale industrial consumers, typically in the oil, chemical, food and beverage, metal, glass sectors and medical
customers in healthcare sectors. Gases and services are supplied as part of customer specific solutions. These range from supply by road tankers in
liquefied form. Gases for cutting and welding, hospital, laboratory applications and a variety of medical purposes are also distributed under pressure in
cylinders.

Glass tubes and glass ware
This segment covers sales of all glass tubes and other glass wares.

Industrial chemicals
This segment covers sales of all industrial chemicals.

Segment results are as follows:

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Industrial and Glass tube Industrial Industrial and lass tube Industrial
. and glass . Total . and glass : Total
medical gases chemicals medical gases chemicals
ware ware
(Rupees '000) (Rupees '000)
Net sales 1,602,704 1,136,099 573614 3312417 1,667,042 636,929 770,755 3,074,726
Cost of sales (1,049,439) (843,896) (638,095)  (2,531,430)  (1,147,814) (606,246) (679,939)  (2,433,999)
Gross profit 553,265 292,203 (64,481) 780,987 519,228 30,683 90,816 640,727
Selling and distribution costs (242,334) (35,322) (10,359)|[  (288,015) (247,808) (32,412) (11,149) (291,369)
Administrative expenses (124,864) (58,190) (9,580)]  (192,634) (137,222) (58,299) (11,960) (207 481)

(367,198) (93,512) (19,939) (480,649 (385,030) (90,711) (23,109) (498,850

Segment profit 186,067 198,691 (84,420) 300,338 134,198 (60,028) 67,707 141,877

Unallocated corporate expenses

Other operating expenses (53,081) (20,950)
Other income 26,782 21,362

274,039 142,289
Finance costs (456,647 (313,734)
Loss before taxation (182,608) (171,445)
Taxation 62,856 _ (40,655)
Loss after taxation (119,752) (212,100
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The segment assets and liabilities as at reporting date for the year ended are as follows:

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
. Glass tube . Glass tube
Indu.stnal and and glass Others Total Indqstnal and and glass Others Total
medical gases medical gases
ware ware
(Rupees '000) (Rupees '000)
Segment assets 4,454,518 2,032,621 122,541 6,609,680 4,905,375 1,941,792 211,961 7,059,128
Unallocated assets 1,509,834 879,417
Total assets 8,119,514 7,938,545
Segment liabilities 1,746,562 628,420 56,400 2,431,382 3,908,688 59,805 61,169 4,029,662
Unallocated liabilities 1,887,526 19,315
Total liabilities 4,318,908 4,048,977

45.3 Transfers between business segments are recorded at cost. There were no inter segment transfers during the year.

45.4 The Group customers base is diverse with no single customer accounting for more than 10% of the net sales.

45.5 All the non-current assets of the Group at the reporting date were located within Pakistan.

46 IMPACT OF COVID-19 (CORONAVIRUS)
The outbreak of Covid-19 as a pandemic and consequently imposition of lockdown by Federal and Provincial Governments of Pakistan (Authorities) has
slightly effected the sales volume of the Group in initial two months due to non-availability of some distributors during the lock down period. However,
being manufacturer of life saving gases and other medical supplies i.e. vial and ampoules, there has been increase in production, selling price and volume
sold of the Group during the pandemic period. There has been no effect of Covid-19 on the financial position of the subsidiary companies during the year

as these have not started operations till year end. The management had analyzed the events as these are indicative of conditions for a review of recoverable
amounts of assets of the Group and consequently concluded that there is no change in recoverable amounts of Group’s assets at the reporting date.

47  PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

The following normal annual production capacity is worked out in triple shift basis.

2020 2019
(Cubic Meter)

Industrial and medical gases

Production at normal capacity - gross 471 66,185,000 51,240,000
Production at normal capacity - net of normal losses 61,000,000 45,750,000
Actual production - net of normal losses 44,075,660 43,088,517

(M.Ton)

Neutral glass tubing clear and amber 47.2

Production at normal capacity - gross 7,300 7,300
Actual production 5,259 1,241

47.1  Under utilization of available capacity is due to unavoidable/abnormal shutdown and repair and maintenance of plant and machinery. The Capacity of the
GGL-IIl Plant has been included above on prorata basis.

47.2 The efficiency of 72% (2019: 17%) in previous year neutral glass tubing was under utilized primarily due to normal repair and maintenance of product line.
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48 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR SHARIAH COMPLIANT COMPANIES

As per the requirements of the fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017, shariah compliant companies and the companies listed on Islamic Index shall

disclose the following:

(i) Loans / advances obtained as per Islamic mode - refer note 12

(if) Shariah compliant bank deposits / bank balances - refer note 15

(i) Profit earned from shariah compliant bank deposits / bank balances - refer note 35
(iv) Revenue earned from a shariah compliant business segment - refer note 30

(

(

v) Markup paid on Islamic mode of financing - refer note 36
vi) Relationship with shariah compliant banks - refer note 15

49  NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of employees at year end

Average number of employees during the year

50 EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

2020 2019
(Number)

475 485

492 460

The Board of Directors of the Ghani Chemical Industries Limited in its meeting held on July 07, 2020 decided to demerge it through a Scheme of
Arrangement as filed with the Honorable Lahore High Court on July 29, 2020 by way of transfer of specified assets into newly incorporated subsidiary
companies, A One Prefabs (Private) Limited, A One Batteries (Private) Limited and Awal Engineering (Private) Limited. These subsidiaries have been
incorporated with the purpose that assets be transferred and vested into subsidiaries through demerger of the Ghani Chemical Industries Limited under a
Scheme of Arrangement ("the Scheme"). In accordance with the scheme of arrangement, the separation of the properties from Ghani Chemical Industries
Limited and transfer and vesting into subsidiary companies mentioned above against the issuance of ordinary shares by such companies to the Ghani
Chemical Industries Limited. The scheme shall be implemented with the approval of the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore for which an application is in

process.

51 CORRESPONDING FIGURES AND GENERAL

51.1 The corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary and for the purposes of comparison and better

presentation. Following important reclassifications have been made:

Reclassified from Reclassified to

Advances from customers Trade and other payables

Capital stores Stores, spares and loose tools

Other receivables Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Trade debts Advances to suppliers

Deferred taxation Deferred liabilities

Security deposits Bank guarantee margin

51.2 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees, unless otherwise stated.

52  DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

2019

(Rupees '000)

84,618
2,020
1,737
4,583

302,181
6,407

These consolidated financial statements have been authorized for issue by Board of Directors of the Holding Company on October 02, 2020.

\/ A 3

ATIQUE AHMAD KHAN ASIM MAHMUD

(CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)

pa sy

HAFIZ FAROOQ AHMAD
(DIRECTOR)
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Annexure”A”
Notice of AGM

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME, 2020

Ghani Global Holdings Limited (formerly known as Ghani Gases Limited), was incorporated in Pakistan as private
limited company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 217), converted into public
limited company on February 12, 2008and became listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on January 05, 2010,
hereby introduces a stock option scheme to be known as the Ghani Global Holdings Limited Employees Stock
Option Scheme, 2020 for offer of stock options to its Eligible Employees in pursuant to the Chapter VI — Employee
Stock Option Scheme under the Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020.

THE PURPOSES OF THE SCHEME ARE:
To improve Company's performance and thereby increase shareholders value;

(1)
(i)

To increase productivity and share the rewards of success of the Company;

To reward the abilities and efforts of all such eligible employees of the Company, as considered fit by the
Compensation Committee;

To attract and retain key employees; and

To align the interests of such employees with those of the Company's shareholders.

DEFINITION AND INTERPRETATION

1.1. In this Employees Stock Option Scheme the words and expressions set out below shall have the
meanings as specified againstthem:

1.1.1.
1.1.2.
1.1.3.

1.1.4.
1.1.5.
1.1.6.

1.1.7.

1.1.9.

'Act' means the Companies Act, 2017;
'The Company' means Ghani Global Glass Limited;

'The Board' means the Board of Directors, for the time being, of the Company acting at a meeting
orthrough a committee of Board of Directors;

'Commission' means the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP);
'CDC' means Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

'Regulations' means the Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020 [specifically
Chapter VI—-Employee Stock Option Scheme];

'The Scheme' means the Ghani Global Glass Limited Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2020
approved by the Commission and introduced under the Chapter VI — Employee Stock Option
Scheme underthe Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020;

'The Compensation Committee' or 'CC' means a Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee appointed by the Board. Subject to regulation 7(1)(ii), the initial CC shall comprise of
the following three non-executive Directors of the Company where Chairman is an Independent
Director:

() Independent Director Chairman
(b) Non-Executive Director Member
(c) Non-Executive Director Member

'Financial Year' means the period starting from 1* July in a calendar year and ending on 30"
Juneinthe following calendar year;
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1.1.10.
1.1.11.

1.1.12.

1.1.13.

1.1.14.

1.1.15.

1.1.16.

1.1.17.

1.1.18.

1.1.19.

1.1.20.

'Shares' means fully paid up ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each in the capital of the Company;

'Allotment of Shares' means Shares that will be allotted in scrip-less form in the Central
Depository System (CDS) of CDC to an Option Holder in accordance with clause4.6;

'ESOS Account' means the book account opened by the Company in the name of each Eligible
Employee to facilitate Cashless Exercise of Options;

'Option' means a right granted to an Eligible Employee to subscribe for Shares at the Option
Price, pursuantto the Scheme;

'Date of Approval' means the date on which the Commission approves the Scheme in
accordance with the requirements of Section 83A of the Companies Act, 2017 and the
Regulations;

'Employment' means employment by the Company or a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the case may be, of an Eligible Employee;

'Eligible Employee' means:

a) A regular employee (including contractual) who is on payroll of the Company working in
Pakistan or outside Pakistan and who is admitted to the Scheme by the Board; or

b)  An Executive Director who is on the payroll of the Company; or
c) A Chief Executive Officer who is on the payroll of the Company; or

d) Subject to compliance with regulation 7 (1)(vii) of the Regulations, a regular employee of
any wholly owned subsidiary company(ies) of the Company, and/or an Executive Director
and/or Chief Executive Officer who is on the payroll of any wholly owned subsidiary
company(ies) and who is admitted to the Scheme by the Board.

'Entitlement Criteria' means criteria that will be determined or laid down from time to time by the
Compensation Committee based on, inter alia, the following factors:

a) Competitive pay levels;
b) Levelof responsibility;
¢) Performance;and

d) No.of years of Service.

'Date of Entitlement' means the 1* of January of each calendar year, or any other date decided
by the Compensation Committee. First entitlement date will be 1% January 2021 or later date as
decided by the Compensation Committee;

'Date of Grant' means the date on which an Option is granted to an Eligible Employee in
accordance with this Scheme;

'Entitlement Pool' means the total number of Shares available for being made the subject of
Options, as determined by the Board from time to time, which shall not, at any time, exceed
fifteen percent (15%) of the paid-up capital of the Company (as increased from time to time). As
on June 30, 2020 paid up capital of the Company is Rs. 1,533,058,240/- divided into
153,305,824 shares of Rs.10/- each and accordingly today the Entitlement Pool is 22,995,874
Shares. However, it is clarified that until such point in time that the number of Shares issued
under the Scheme equal fifteen percent (15 %) of the paid-up capital of the Company, the
balance Entitlement Pool shall be calculated taking into account any increase(s) in the paid up
capital. However, once the number of Shares issued under this Scheme equal fifteen percent
(15%) of the paid up capital of the Company, the Entitlement Pool shall be exhausted and this
Scheme shall cease to operate, notwithstanding any subsequent increase inthe paid-up capital;
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1.1.21.

1.1.22.

1.1.23.

1.1.24.

1.1.25.

1.1.26.

1.1.27.

1.1.28.

1.1.29.

1.1.30.

1.1.31.

1.1.32.

1.1.33.

1.1.34.

1.1.35.

1.1.36.

'Option Holder' means an Eligible Employee or permitted successor/transferee of an Eligible
Employee holding an Option;

'Option Notice' means the notice given by an Eligible Employee to the Company for the exercise
of Option held:;

'Option Price' means the subscription price for a Share comprised in any Option which, unless
otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee in compliance with regulation 7 (1) (viii)
of the Regulations, shall be weighted average of the closing market price of the Share of the
Company at the Karachi Stock Exchange Limited for the last 90 consecutive calendar days
immediately preceding the Date of Grant of the relevant Option. Provided that it shall not in any
case be lessthanthe face value of Rs.10.00 per share.

'Option Certificate' means a certificate issued to an Option Holder in accordance with clause 3.3
of the Scheme;

'‘Normal Anticipated Retirement Date' means 60 years of age or such other age at which an
Eligible Employee is required to retire by his contract of employment or as per rules and policy of
the Company including wholly owned subsidiary Company(ies);

'Retirement' means the ceasing of Employment of an Eligible Employee on attaining the Normal
Anticipated Retirement Date;

'Cashless Exercise' means the mechanism described in clause 4.5 whereby the Company may
fund all or part of the Option Price;

“Exercise Period” means a period of one (1) year from the expiry of the Minimum Period;

'Share Entitlement' means that number of Shares for which an Option is granted to an Eligible
Employee in accordance with the Scheme, as stated in the Option Certificate relating to such
Option; and

'Minimum Period' means, for each Option or portion thereof, the period, as specified in clause
4.2, after which the Option or portion thereof can be exercised by the Option Holder.

'Stock Exchange' means Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited where Company's Shares are listed:;

In the Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires, words denoting the singular number shall
include the plural number and words denoting the masculine gender shall include the feminine
gender.

In the Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to a regulation is to a
regulation under the Regulations, and a reference to a clause is to a clause of the Scheme.

A reference to any legislation or legislative provision includes any statutory modification or re-
enactment of, or legislative provision substituted for, and any subordinate legislation under, that
legislative provision.

A reference to any agreement or document is to that agreement or document (and, where
applicable, any of its provisions) as stands amended, novated, restated or replaced at the
relevanttime.

A reference to any person includes that persons' executors, administrators, successors,
permitted transferees.
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EFFECTIVENESS AND THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

2.1.
2.2.

The Scheme shall come into force with effect from the Date of Approval.

The Compensation Committee shall be constituted in terms of this Scheme and the Rules and shall
exercise such powers as are stated herein and/or in the Rules to be exercised by the Compensation
Committee.

GRANT OF OPTIONS

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

On or prior to the Date of Entitlement (and at least once in every Financial Year), the Compensation
Committee shall determine and recommend to the Board as to which Eligible Employees are entitled to
grant of Options for the Financial Year preceding the Date of Entitlement, and the proposed terms and
conditions and quantum of each Option. The CC shall, in determining the aforementioned entitlement,
take into account the Entitlement Criteria and undertake performance evaluation based on a system of
ratings, competitive pay levels, level of responsibility, number of years of service and information
provided by the heads of department.

Within 30 days of the Date of Entitlement, the Board, on recommendation of the CC, may in its discretion
grant the recommended Options to the recommended Eligible Employee in respect of the immediately
preceding Financial Year.

In evidence of the Option granted to an Eligible Employee pursuant to Clause 3.2, the Company shall
deliver an Option Certificate to such Eligible Employee, stating therein the Entitlement of the Eligible
Employee, the Date of Grant, the Exercise Period, the Minimum Period and the Option Price. Each Option
shall be personal to the Eligible Employee to whom it is granted and, other than a transfer to the Eligible
Employee's legal heirs on his death, shall not be transferable, assignable or chargeable in any manner
whatsoever. Any other purported transfer, assignment, charge, disposal or dealing with the rights and
interest of the Option Holder under the Scheme or under an Option shall render such Option null void.

The aggregate number of the Shares for all Options to be granted under this Scheme to all Eligible
Employees shall not, at any time, exceed the Entitiement Pool.

The aggregate number of the Shares for all Options to be granted under the Scheme to any single Eligible
Employee shall not, at any time, exceed three percent (3%) of the paid-up capital of the Company (as
increased from time to time). Provided that the grant of Options to Eligible Employee in any one calendar
year exceeding one percent (1 %) of the paid-up capital of the Company (as increased from time to time
but excluding outstanding conversions) shall require the approval of the shareholders of the Company
under regulation 7(1)(b).

No Option shall be granted to an Eligible Employee specified in Clause 1.1.16 except with the approval of
the shareholders of the Company under regulation 7(1)(a) of the Regulations.

An Eligible Employee who is on long leave (i.e. leave in excess of the normal leave requirements provided
in the terms and conditions of employment) may also become entitled to such Options as may be
determined by the CC inits discretion fromtime to time.

EXERCISE OF OPTIONS

41.

4.2.

An Option or any portion thereof shall be exercised during the applicable Exercise Period, subject to
expiry of the relevant Minimum Period.

There shall be a minimum period of one year between the grant of option and vesting of option. An
employee shall not have right to receive any dividend or to vote or in any manner enjoy the benefits of a
shareholder in respect of option granted to him, till shares are issued to him on exercise of option.
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4.3. An Option may be exercised in full or in part, from time to time within the applicable Exercise Period
(subjectto expiry of the relevant Minimum Period).

4.4. In order to exercise an Option in whole or in part, the Option Holder must, after expiry of the relevant
Minimum Period and prior to expiry of the relevant Exercise Period, deliver to the Secretary of the
Company an Option Notice in writing specifying the number of Shares in respect of which the Option is
being exercised, and deliver a copy of such Option Notice along with the Option Certificate. Payment for
the Option Price relating to the Option or part thereof being exercised must also be made to the CC, in
readily available funds accompanying the Option Notice and/or, in case Clause 4.5 is applicable, by the
Option Holder opting for the Cashless Exercise of Option there under. The date of delivery of the Option
Notice to the Company shall constitute, for all purposes, the date of exercise of such Option. Each Option
Notice shall be given only in such form, and shall be subject to such other requirements and modalities,
as the Company may fromtime to time prescribe.

4.5.  Under the Cashless System of exercise of Option, the Company may, in its discretion, fund by way of an
interest free advance, up to the entire amount of the relevant Option Price, to the Eligible Employees that
come within the scope of the proviso to Section 86 (2) of the Act, The CC may, within ten working days of
receipt of an Option Notice opting for a Cashless Exercise under this Clause 4.5, (in its discretion) either
refuse the funding of such Option or make payment (by debiting the ESOS Account of such Eligible
Employee) of the relevant portion of Option Price in respect of which such Eligible Employee has opted for
Cashless Exercise under this Clause4.5 (as specified in the Option Notice).

4.6. Assoon as practicable and in any event not more than thirty days after the later to occur of receipt by the
Company of each Option Notice and the payment of the applicable Option Price, the Shares in respect of
which the Option has been exercised shall be allotted by the Company to the Eligible Employee.
Employees exercising the option must have account in CDC and the Shares shall be directly credited
through book entries into the respective Central Depository System (CDS) accounts of allottees
maintained with the CDC and the name of such Eligible Employee shall be entered in the register of
members of the Company in respect of the Shares so allotted. The Option Holders, therefore, must have a
CDS Account at the time of exercising the Option. Provided, however, in case the Eligible Employee has
opted for a Cashless Exercise under Clause4.5 in respect of all or part of such Option Price, the Company
shall have a lien on the Shares allotted there under up to the amounts advanced by the Company under
Clause 4.5, and the Company shall be entitled to sell such number of Shares as are required to repay such
amounts and reduce the debit balance in such Eligible Employee's ESOS Account to nil.

4.7. No Option Holder shall have any right to receive any sort of dividend or to vote in any manner or enjoy the
benefits of a shareholder in respect of any Option granted to him until Shares are actually issued to himon
exercise of the Option (and thereafter such rights shall be limited only to the extent of the Shares issued to
him).

4.8. Thereis nolock-in period for any Shares allotted and issued to an Option Holder on exercise of his Option,
i.e. an Option Holder shall be free to sell or otherwise dispose of his Shares (subject to the provisions of
Clause 4.5, if applicable). Please refer to Annexure-A — Time Schedule [and mechanism] of the
Scheme.

5. LAPSE OF OPTIONS
5.1. The unexercised portion of an Option shall lapse at the completion of the relevant Exercise Period.
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5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, upon an Option Holder ceasing to be in
Employment for any reason (including termination of employment for misconduct) other than Retirement
or death or permanent incapacity, only such Options or portion thereof held by him for which the
Minimum Period has expired on or prior to the date of termination / resignation shall remain valid and all
other Options or portions of Options shall immediately lapse thereafter. The Options or portions thereof
that remain valid under this Clause 5.2 may be exercised any time up till the expiry of applicable Exercise
Period or within the period of nine months from the date of termination/ resignation of the Option Holder,
whichever is earlier, and the unexercised Options or portion thereof, if any, shall lapse thereafter.
Provided, however, the Compensation Committee may, in its discretion, extend the permissible period for
exercise of the aforementioned Options beyond the aforementioned period but not, in any case, beyond
the Exercise Period relating to such Option.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, upon the Option Holder ceasing to be in
Employment by reason of Retirement or permanent incapacitation, all remaining Options held by him on
the date of Retirement or permanent incapacitation shallimmediately vestin his name (irrespective of the
applicable Minimum Period) and will remain capable of exercise only up till the expiry of applicable
Exercise Period or the period of twelve months from the date of such Retirement / permanent
incapacitation, whichever is earlier, and any unexercised portion of the Option shall lapse thereafter.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, upon the death of any Option Holder, all
remaining Options held by him on the date of death shall immediately vest in the name of his legal heirs
(irrespective of the applicable Minimum Periods) and will remain capable of exercise by such legal heirs
only up till the expiry of the applicable Exercise Period or the period of twelve months from the date of
death, whichever is earlier, and any unexercised portion of the Option shall lapse thereafter. Provided
however that such legal heirs shall, prior to exercise of an Option, be required to show evidence to the
Company's satisfaction that they are the only legal heirs of the deceased Option Holder.

Upon the lapse of an Option, any outstanding Shares for which the Option was issued and not exercised
may be offered by the CC to other Eligible Employees and shall not be double-counted for the purposes of
the Entitlement Pool.

CALCULATION OF ENTITLEMENT

The Board, on recommendation of the CC, shall determine the entitlement to Options of the Eligible Employees
inameeting to be held within 30 days of the Date of Entitlement.

COMPLIANCE

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

The Scheme shall be administered and implemented in due compliance with law, including without
limitation, applicable provisions of the Act and the Regulations.

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the Board shall ensure compliance with regulation 7
of the Regulations.

The policy and system for controlling insider trading shall be as follows:

(@) the Company will ensure that each Eligible Employee is provided with a copy of the Scheme prior to
grant of any Option;

(b)  while granting any Option to an Eligible Employee, he/she will be cautioned in writing that all Options
granted will lapse forthwith if the Eligible Employee is found guilty of insider trading;

(c) the Company will provide the Eligible Employee, prior to grant of any Option, with copies of the
relevant sections of law (including any up-dates or amendments thereto) dealing with the
prohibition againstinsider trading;
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(d) alltrades of the Company's securities by all Option Holders must be reported within five (5) working
days to the Company Secretary of the Company;

(e) An Eligible Employee shall neither disclose any inside information to any other person nor make
recommendations nor express opinion on the basis of inside information as to trading in the
Company's securities.

7.4. Without prejudice to the foregoing, the CC may from time to time modify the aforementioned policy or
make other suitable policies and system to ensure that there is no violation of insider trading provisions of
Securities Act, 2015 and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan Act, 1997 or the rules
made underthese laws.

7.5. “Inside information” and “insider trading” shall have the same meaning as described thereto in the Act,
2015.

7.6. Ifany Option Holderis found involved in or suspected of insider trading, the Options granted to him but not
yet exercised shall be withdrawn.

8. EXPENSES

Any expenses of the Company involved in any issue of Shares in the name of any Option Holder shall be payable
by the Company.

9. GENERAL

9.1. Any notification or other notice in writing which the Company is required to give, or may desire to give, to
any Eligible Employee or Option Holder (or his legal representative, as the case may be) in pursuance of
this Scheme shall be sufficiently given if delivered to him by hand or sent through post in prepaid cover
addressed to the Eligible Employee or Option Holder at the last address known to the Company as being
his address. Any certificate, notification or other notice in writing required to be given to the Company or
the Secretary of the Company shall be properly given if sent to or delivered to the registered office of the
Company.

9.2. The Board shall, at all times, keep available for issue such authorized and un-issued Shares as may be
required to meet the subsisting subscription rights of the Option Holders.

9.3. The decision of the CC in any dispute or question relating to any Option shall be final and conclusive,
subject to the written confirmation of the auditors of the Company whenever required in the determination
of the break-up value or fair value of the Shares for the purposes of this Scheme.

9.4. Participation inthis Scheme by an Option Holder is a matter entirely separate from any gratuity, provident
fund or pension right or entitlement he may have and from his terms or conditions of Employment and
participation in this Scheme shall in no respects whatsoever affect in any way an Option Holder's other
rights or entitlement or terms or conditions of his Employment. In particular (but without limiting the
generality of the foregoing words) any Option Holder who leaves Employment shall not be entitled to any
compensation for any loss of any right or benefit or prospective right or benefit under this Scheme which
he might have otherwise enjoyed whether such compensation is claimed by way of damages for
wrongful dismissal or breach of contract or by way of compensation for loss of office or otherwise
howsoever.

9.5. If a provision of this Scheme is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable, that shall not affect the
legality, validity or enforceability of any other provision of this Scheme.

9.6. In case of a conflict between the provisions of this Scheme and the provisions of the Act or the
Regulations (as the case may be), the provisions of the Act or Regulations (as the case may be) shall
prevail.
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10.

11.

9.7. Inapproving this Scheme, the shareholders of the Company shall be deemed to be expressly permitting
issuance, from time to time, of Shares under or pursuant to the Options granted hereunder as shares
otherthanright shares.

MODIFICATIONS AND ALTERATIONS:

10.1. The terms of this Scheme may at any time be modified or altered only in accordance with regulation
7(1)(viii) of the Regulations.

10.2. Rights already vested in Option Holders' by the grant of Options cannot be retrospectively altered or
modified to the Option Holders' detriment by any alteration or modification to the Scheme.

TERMINATION

11.1. The Board may at any time resolve to terminate this Scheme in which event no further or new Options
shall be granted, but the provisions of this Scheme shall in relation to Options then subsisting (i.e. options
granted and not lapsed) shall continue in full force and effect.
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GHANI GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

13" Annual General Meeting
FORM OF PROXY

Ghani Global Group

l/'We

of

being a member of GHANI GLOBAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

hereby

of

appoint

failing him

as my/ our Proxy to attend act and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at 13" Annual General Meeting of the members of

the Company to be held at Lahore on Wednesday, October 28, 2020 and at any adjournment(s) thereof.

Signed this

day of October 2020.

Signed in the presence of:

Sign by the said Member

1. Signature: 2. Signature:
Name: Name:
Address: Address:
CNIC/Passport No. CNIC/Passport No.
For Proxy For alternate
Information required For Member Proxy (*)
(Shareholder) (If member)

Number of shares held

Folio No.

CcDC
Account
No.

Participant
I.D.

Account No.

Affix
Revenue
Stamp of

Rs.5/

(*) Upon failing of appointed Proxy.
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